
saferbromley 

partnership 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

To: Members of the  
 

safersafersafersaferbromley partnershipbromley partnershipbromley partnershipbromley partnership    

STRATEGIC GROUP 

 Councillor Tim Stevens J.P. (Chairman) 
 Stephanie Roberts, (Borough Police Commander) (Vice-Chairman) 

 

 Rob Clarke, (London Probation Service) 
James Cleverly, (Police and Crime Committee, Greater London Authority) 
Susan Clinton, (Affinity Sutton) 
Paul Cook, (London Ambulance Service) 
Nigel Davies, (LBB Director, Environmental Services) 
Clive Davison, (LBB Assistant Director, Public Protection) 
Sarah Denton, (Mayor’s Office for Policing and Crime) 
Selene Grandison, (SE London Probation Service) 
Andrew Holcombe, (Borough Commander, Fire Services) 
Colin Maclean, (Community Links Bromley) 
Jim McGowan, (LBB Head of Environmental Protection) 
Ulanta Messeter, (Magistrates Court) 
Paula Morrison, (Assistant Director, Public Health) 
Jo Oakley, (Deputy Borough Commander) 
Howard Oldstein, (The Glades) 
Doug Patterson, (LBB Chief Executive) 
Lulu Pearce, (Ethnic Communities Programme Manager) 
Gill Rose, (Federation of Bromley Housing Associations) 
Paula Tucker, (UK Border Agency) 
Non Voting Members: Councillor Reg Adams and Councillor Julian Benington 

 
 A meeting of the Safer Bromley Partnership Strategic Group will be held at 

Committee Rooms, Bromley Civic Centre on THURSDAY 21 MARCH 2013 at 
10.00 am  

 
A G E N D A 

 

1  
  

INTRODUCTIONS / APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  

2  
  

MINUTES OF LAST MEETING / MATTERS ARISING (Pages 3 - 12) 

3  
  

CHAIRMAN'S UPDATE (VERBAL UPDATE)  

Contact for this Agenda: Kerry Nicholls 

Tel: 020 8313 4602 
E-mail: kerry.nicholls@bromley.gov.uk 
London Borough of Bromley 
12 March 2013 



 
 

4  
  

BOROUGH COMMANDER'S UPDATE (VERBAL UPDATE)  

5  
  

PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT REPORT QUARTER SEP - DEC 2012 (Pages 13 - 20) 

6  
  

RESIDENTIAL BURGLARY ANALYSIS APR - SEP 2012 (Pages 21 - 26) 

7  
  

PERPETRATOR PROGRAMME: DOMESTIC ABUSE (Pages 27 - 66) 

8  
  

DOMESTIC VIOLENCE STATISTICAL UPDATE 2010 - 2012 (Pages 67 - 70) 

9  PARTNER SUPPORT GROUP UPDATES (VERBAL UPDATES)  

 (Drug Action Team, Youth Offending Service, Bromley Community Engagement 
Forum, Arson Sub-Group, Borough Resilience Forum and Operational Tasking)  
 
Additional updates to be provided around: 
 
Easter and Summer Divert Activities, Bromley Mentoring Service, MOPAC Bid, 
Tackling Troubled Families Programme, Gangs and LFB Budgets. 
  

10  
  

COMMUNICATIONS UPDATE (VERBAL UPDATE)  

11  
  

INFORMATION ITEMS  

a BOROUGH COMMANDER'S NEWSLETTER - MARCH 2013 (Pages 71 - 80) 

12  
  

ANY OTHER BUSINESS  

13  DATE AND TIME OF NEXT MEETING  

 10.00am, Thursday 27th June 2013 
10.00am, Thursday 19th September 2013 
10.00am, Thursday 5th December 2013 
10.00am, Thursday 13th March 2014  
 

 
  



1 
 

SAFER BROMLEY PARTNERSHIP STRATEGIC GROUP 
 

Minutes of the meeting held at 10.00 am on 13 December 2012 
 
 

Present: 
 

Councillor Tim Stevens J.P. (Chairman) 
 

Councillor Julian Benington 
 

James Cleverly, (Police and Crime Committee, Greater London Authority) 
Nigel Davies, (LBB Director, Environmental Services) 
Sarah Denton, (Mayor’s Office for Policing and Crime) 
Andrew Holcombe, (Borough Commander, Fire Services) 
Paula Morrison, (Assistant Director, Public Health) 
Colin Newman, (LBB Head of Community Safety) 
Howard Oldstein, (The Glades) 
Lulu Pearce, (Ethnic Communities Programme Manager) 
 

 
Also Present: 

 
Councillor Douglas Auld 
Karen Bishop, (London Community Payback) 
Kevin Clark, (Metropolitan Police) 
Susie Clark, (LBB Communications Officer) 
Mark Farey, (London Probation Service) 
Pratheepan Jeyapragasam, (LBB Crime Analyst) 
Paul King, (LBB Head of Bromley Youth Support Programme) 
Ian Smith, (Bromley Community Engagement Forum) 
 

 

1 INTRODUCTIONS / APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 
 

Action 

Apologies were received from Councillor Reg Adams, Councillor Kate 
Lymer,  Paul Cook (London Ambulance Service), Stephen Lewis (LBB 
Emergency Planning Manager), Colin MacLean (Community Links 
Bromley), Jo Oakley (Deputy Borough Commander), Stephanie 
Roberts (Borough Police Commander) and Kay Weiss (LBB Assistant 
Director, Safeguarding and Social Care) 
 

 

2 MINUTES OF LAST MEETING / MATTERS ARISING 
 

Action 

The notes of the last meeting held on 27th September 2012 were 
received. 
 
It was noted: 
Minute 6 – Recommendations from Tackling Gangs Work – The Head 
of Community Safety reported that Paula Morrison had organised a 
meeting between Public Health and Community Safety Officers with 
representatives of the South London Healthcare NHS Trust following 
concerns raised that young people at risk of becoming involved in 
gang-related activity be identified when they presented at Accident 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 2

Page 3



Safer Bromley Partnership Strategic Group 
13 December 2012 
 

2 

and Emergency Departments with potential gang-related injuries.  The 
Lead Consultant and Matron of the Accident and Emergency 
Department at the Princes Royal University Hospital had advised 
representatives of the Partnership that this was not an issue at 
present but that the potential changes in Accident and Emergency 
provision in neighbouring boroughs might increase the number of 
young people presenting to the Accident and Emergency Department 
with gang-related injuries.  The Lead Consultant had undertaken work 
to identify premises in the Borough where people had sustained 
alcohol related injuries and the Chairman requested that the initial 
findings from this work be provided to the Partnership. 
 
It was AGREED that the minutes be approved. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
CN 

3 CHAIRMAN'S UPDATE 
 

Action 

The Chairman advised the Partnership that a meeting had been held 
with representatives of South London and Maudsley NHS Foundation 
Trust with regard to the security of units at Bethlem Royal Hospital 
and proposals to move additional patients to these units.  
Representatives of the hospital had provided assurances regarding 
the number of patients to be housed in each unit and would continue 
to work with the Local Authority and Metropolitan Police to ensure that 
the security of the units was managed appropriately.  Representatives 
of the hospital were also asked to give consideration to inviting the 
Chairman of the Safer Bromley Partnership to join the Board of 
Directors at the Bethlem Royal Hospital. 
Following a meeting with the Deputy Mayor for Policing and Crime, 
the Chairman was pleased to announce that the Deputy Mayor had 
stated that it was likely that the Safer Bromley Partnership would 
become the Safer Bromley Neighbourhood Board from April 2013, 
which would expand the remit of the Partnership to include a range of 
new responsibilities including complaints monitoring, developing local 
policing and crime priorities and taking a significant role in community 
payback. 
 
It was AGREED that the update be noted. 
 

 

4 BOROUGH COMMANDER UPDATE 
 

Action 

Detective Chief Inspector Kevin Clark reported that burglary and 
robbery continued to be targeted as a priority across the Borough, and 
that work was being undertaken with the Safer Neighbourhood and 
Safer Transport Teams in the Crystal Palace area to tackle a recent 
increase in robberies.  Seventeen individuals had recently been 
arrested for burglary in the Borough, and a London Crime Squad had 
been formed in response to a series of aggravated burglaries at 
Halloween which were suspected to be linked with other offences 
committed in Brixton.   
A range of operations continued to be delivered across the Borough, 

 

Page 4



Safer Bromley Partnership Strategic Group 
13 December 2012 

 

3 
 

including the targeting of licensed premises, unlicensed taxis and 
drugs offences.  550 unlicensed vehicles had been seized across 
London since March 2012, and work was also being undertaken with 
local banks and building societies to reduce fraud against elderly 
people. 
Work was currently underway to develop a more efficient, cost-
effective policing model across London and Detective Chief Inspector 
Kevin Clark noted that the number of Police Constables would be 
increased, with a reduction in higher ranking officers.  Public access 
points would be established across the Borough for members of the 
public to contact the police. 
Andy Holcombe noted that the Fire Service was working with the 
Police to support Fire Service officers in identifying whether people 
were vulnerable to burglary when conducting fire safety visits in the 
home and that approximately 30 referrals had already been made to 
the Safer Bromley van. 
 
It was AGREED that the updates be noted. 
 

5 PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT REPORT (QUARTER 2, JULY - 
AUGUST 2012) 
 

Action 

Consideration was given to the performance monitoring report for 
Quarter 2, 2012/13 which reported progress against 4 key indicators.   
Performance Indicator 1: Reduction in Number of Violent Crimes 
showed that offences related to Violent Crimes represented 21% of 
the Total Notifiable Offences in Q1, with a reduction of 84 offences 
compared to the same period in 2011/12.  This included a reduction of 
44 Wounding/GBH offences and 104 Assault with Injury offences.  
There had been an increase in Common Assault by 18% compared to 
the same period in 2011/12, which included Domestic Violence 
offences.  This potentially reflected better reporting of Domestic 
Violence offences, but would be looked at in more detail and reported 
to the next meeting of the Partnership. 
Performance Indicator 2: Reduction in Numbers of Property Crimes 
within Bromley showed that offences related to property crimes 
represented 67% of the Total Notifiable Offences in Q4, with a 
decrease of 122 offences compared to the same period last year.  
This included a decrease in burglaries by 2%, theft and handling by 
2% and criminal damage by 10%.  There had been a 2% increase in 
robbery which represented 4 offences, and this continued to be 
targeted.   
Progress against Performance Indicator 3: Reduction in Levels of 
Recorded Anti-Social Behaviour showed a reduction of 856 incidents 
of Anti-Social Behaviour reported compared to the same period in 
2011/12.  This included a reduction of 158 incidents of Graffiti 
reported, 224 incidents of Anti-social Behaviour reported to police and 
15 incidents of Anti-social Behaviour reported the Council compared 
to the same period in 2011-12. 
With regard to Performance Indicator 4: Increased Confidence in the 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
CN/PJ 

Page 5



Safer Bromley Partnership Strategic Group 
13 December 2012 
 

4 

Fact that Bromley is a Safe Place, it was noted that the performance 
indicator, ‘To what extent do you agree that the police and local 
council are dealing the ASB and crime issues that matter in this area’ 
(Question 74AB) had not been published in the Quarter 2 report by 
the Metropolitan Police.  However there had been a reduction of 4% in 
the proportion of Bromley residents responding to the survey who 
were worried about Anti-social Behaviour and crime in their area. 
 
It was AGREED that the Performance Management Report for Qtr 
2 2012/13 be endorsed. 
 

6 RESIDENTIAL BURGLARY ANALYSIS (APRIL - SEPTEMBER 
2012) 
 

Action 

Consideration was given to a report providing an analysis of burglary 
offences in the Borough between April and September 2012 following 
a 17% increase during Q1 of 2012/13, which was higher than the 
London average.  This analysis covered two types of burglary offence: 

• Burglary in a Dwelling 

• Burglary in other Dwellings 
The analysis had indicated a number of key factors in the current 
pattern of residential burglary and it was proposed that these key 
factors be tabled in order to facilitate a reduction in offending.  The 
report also recognised the importance of analysis of victim data and 
recommended that further work was undertaken in this area to allow 
more specific crime prevention advice to be provided to Bromley 
residents.  In considering the analysis, Councillor Julian Benington 
requested that information be provided around the percentage of 
households impacted by Burglary in a Dwelling in each ward.  Ian 
Smith also requested that the reporting times for burglary be reported 
on ward basis. 
In considering the report, the Head of Community Safety noted that 
there were currently three main ‘hotspot’ locations for Burglary in a 
Dwelling; Clockhouse, Penge and Cator and Plaistow and Sundridge 
wards which were all located on the Borough boundary.   
The Chairman highlighted the importance of targeting Burglary in a 
Dwelling across all wards in the Borough through a co-ordinated Safer 
Bromley Partnership strategy.  There was a need to encourage 
Bromley residents to secure their property which could be 
communicated through a wide range of methods including making 
information available at transport hubs, shopping centres and 
supermarkets, through the local press or via the Safer Bromley van.  
Howard Oldstein suggested that an empty unit at the Glades be used 
to provide a visible security message.  There was also potential for a 
range of partners to provide advice, including registered social 
landlords, health visitors and insurance providers.  Information 
distributed via primary schools to allow children to ‘educate’ their 
parents and grandparents had proved to be successful in the past.  
Other boroughs had also utilised meals on wheels staff, social media 
and ward checks by Safer Neighbourhood Teams to promote better 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
CN/PJ 
 
CN/PJ 

Page 6



Safer Bromley Partnership Strategic Group 
13 December 2012 

 

5 
 

security. 
Detective Chief Inspector Kevin Clark advised the Partnership that the 
most recent police data showed that the increase in burglary had 
reduced from 17% to 7.8% which indicated that work to target the 
increase in burglary was having an impact. 
 
It was AGREED that: 
 

1) The results of the analysis be noted; 
 

2) A further analysis be commissioned to identify the key 
profiles of victims of Burglary in a Dwelling across the 
Borough; 

 
3) That work to continue delivery of prevention advice to 

decrease Burglary offences (to include specific focus in 
terms of location and offence types) by Safer 
Neighbourhood Development Officers be intensified; 

 
4) That late night security at some venues, particularly those 

along the Borough boundaries be reviewed; and, 
 

5) That work to monitor trends in Burglary in a Dwelling 
offences continue and that resources be tasked as 
suggested by that analysis. 

 

7 PUTTING VICTIMS FIRST - MORE EFFECTIVE RESPONSES TO 
ANTI-SOCIAL BEHAVIOUR 
 

Action 

Consideration was given to a report setting out a proposed list of 
actions to ensure that the Safer Bromley Partnership continued to 
make progress in work to tackle Anti-social Behaviour and improve 
the services received by victims following notification of key changes 
proposed within the Government White Paper, ‘Putting Victims First – 
More Effective Responses to Anti-social Behaviour, which set out 
proposals to change legislation and improve the range of tools that 
police and other agencies had to tackle Anti-social Behaviour.   
 
It was AGREED that: 
 

1) Key changes proposed within the Government White 
Paper, ‘Putting Victims First – More Effective Responses 
to Anti-social Behaviour’ be noted; 

 
2) A range of proposed actions be delivered in the short, 

medium and long term: 
 

Short Term Developments  
 

• Establish an Anti-Social Behaviour Multi Agency Risk 

 

Page 7



Safer Bromley Partnership Strategic Group 
13 December 2012 
 

6 

Assessment Conference; 

• Review and Identify links to other cross agency agenda 
e.g. Tackling Troubled Families, Reducing Harm 
Caused by Drugs and Alcohol; 

• Adopt Matrix Assessment for collation and allocation of 
work; and,  

• Identify and address key recording issues in relation to 
lead agencies e.g. Registered Social Landlord, Police, 
Local Authority. 

 
Medium Term Developments 
 

• Undertake a review of work with victims of Anti Social 
Behaviour and identify key developments for services 
in moving forward; 

• Undertake review of current staffing levels across the 
Partnership agencies and identify recommendations for 
future working; and, 

• Assess value of delivering Restorative Justice 
interventions across the borough (identify best practice 
from other boroughs). 

 
Long Term Developments 
 

• Implement detail of recommended changes to existing 
powers (e.g. changes to Anti Social Behaviour Order); 

• Further develop and implement proposals relating to 
the Community Trigger and Partnership response; and,  

• Ensure the changes to measures such as Crack House 
Closures, Dispersal Orders etc are implemented 
effectively. 

 

8 PAYBACK PRESENTATION 
 

Action 

Karen Bishop, London Community Payback gave a presentation 
outlining the new delivery model for community service across 
London, which would be delivered by the London Probation Service in 
partnership with Serco from 31st March 2012.  The community service 
programme would be more intensive with the expectation that 
offenders would work more frequently, with community service 
beginning within seven days of an order being imposed, and that 
unemployed offenders would work up to 4 days per week where 
appropriate.  Placements would also be available to groups of young 
offenders aged 16-17 years which included mentoring and education 
and employability elements.  Women-only projects would also be 
established to meet the needs of some offenders.   
Projects for community service had yet to be confirmed, however 
these projects would be broken down into two stages.  Offenders 
would start working in unskilled manual labour projects and could then 
move to more skilled placements when a level of trust was 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 8



Safer Bromley Partnership Strategic Group 
13 December 2012 

 

7 
 

demonstrated, giving offenders the opportunity to gain work skills. 
Karen Bishop advised the Partnership that community payback 
schemes would be made available across the Borough.  The vehicle 
fleet available to transport offenders to community payback projects in 
the Borough had been reduced from five vehicles to one vehicle.  
Where possible, offenders would be allocated schemes close to their 
residence, but offenders would now be responsible to transport 
themselves to their community payback schemes, paying their own 
transport costs.   
In considering the changes to transport, Members of the Partnership 
were generally concerned that this would decrease the level of 
engagement offenders had with the Community Payback Scheme, 
and the Chairman requested that representatives of London 
Community Payback meet with the Local Authority to discuss how the 
scheme would work. 
 

It was AGREED that the presentation be noted. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Chairma
n/ND/CN
/KB 

9 SAFER BROMLEY CRIME SUMMIT 
 

Action 

The Chairman was pleased to announce that a Safer Bromley Crime 
Summit would be convened in Spring 2013.  Stephen Greenhalgh, the 
Deputy Mayor for Policing and Crime had been confirmed as the key 
speaker, and the event would give partners and members of the 
public an opportunity to debate key issues impacting the Borough and 
to showcase the excellent work that was taking place. 
The Chairman also noted that the Summit would provide a good 
opportunity to promote crime prevention and safety to those who lived 
and worked in the Borough. 
 

It was AGREED that the update be noted 
 

 
 
 
All 
Partners 

10 MOPAC UPDATE 
 

Action 

Sarah Denton gave an update on the current work of the Mayor’s 
Office for Policing and Crime.  The Mayor’s Office for Policing and 
Crime had a new Chief Operating Officer, Helen Bailey, who would be 
overseeing the delivery of the 20/20/20 challenge which aimed to cut 
seven key ‘neighbourhood crimes’, boost public confidence and 
reduce the cost of the Metropolitan Police Service by 20% by 2016.   
Stephen Greenhalgh, the Deputy Mayor for Policing and Crime would 
be visiting each Borough as part of the consultation on the London 
Police and Crime Plan.  Bromley’s consultation event would take 
place at 8.00pm on 28th January 2013 at Bromley Civic Centre and all 
partners were invited to attend.  This event would also give partners 
and members of the public an opportunity to provide their views on 
the proposed local policing model. 
Partners were invited to contribute to London’s policing priorities 
through the ‘Have your say’ consultation which ran throughout the 
year and could be accessed at http://www.smart-
survey.co.uk/v.asp?i=54757lbrpc.  A consultation would also be 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
All 
Partners 
 
 
All 
Partners 
 

Page 9



Safer Bromley Partnership Strategic Group 
13 December 2012 
 

8 

undertaken in March 2013 around how Safer Neighbourhood Boards 
would operate, and partners were encouraged to contribute.   
The Commissioning process for the Community Safety Fund 2013-14 
was currently being developed and Local Authorities would be 
expected to set out businesses cases for funding bids.  The Chairman 
noted that the Head of Community Safety would coordinate all bids to 
develop a single submission on behalf of the Council and highlighted 
the need for the bid process to be confirmed as soon as possible to 
allow time for business cases to be developed. 
 
RESOLVED that the update be noted. 
 

All 
Partners 
 
 
 
CN 

11 SUPPORT GROUP UPDATES 
 

Action 

Substance Misuse Board – The Head of Community Safety reported 
that the remit of the National Treatment Agency was expanding to 
include treatment for alcohol dependency. 
 
Youth Offending Service – Paul King reported that the Bromley Youth 
Council had launched its anti-bullying pledge in November 2012 and 
work was being undertaken to deliver a Diversionary Activities 
programme for children and young people for Easter 2013.  There 
was a continuing trend for a reduction in first time entrants to the 
Youth Justice System and an increase in the number of young 
offenders in education, employment or training.  The Legal Aid, 
Sentencing and Punishment of Offenders Act 2012 had been 
implemented on 3rd December 2012 and the Youth Offending Service 
was currently working with partners to apply the provisions of the Act 
by April 2013, which would include community based alternatives to 
custody where appropriate. 
 
Bromley Community Engagement Forum – Ian Smith reported that a 
survey on ‘Stop and Search’ had been undertaken on the Bromley 
and Orpington campuses of Bromley College of Further and Higher 
Education on 21st and 22nd November 2012 and that 220 surveys had 
been completed.  The Bromley Community Engagement Forum Youth 
Conference would take place on 27th March 2013 at the Education 
Development Centre, and the date for the next public meeting of the 
Bromley Community Engagement Forum would be announced 
shortly. 
 
Arson Sub Group – Andy Holcombe reported that all arson targets 
were currently being met, but that vehicle fires remained an ongoing 
area of concern.  Four different options had been developed for the 
future delivery of the Bromley Fire Service, however it was noted that 
existing attendance times of 6 minutes for the first vehicle and 8 
minutes for the second would not be changed.  
 
It was AGREED the update be noted. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
IS 

Page 10



Safer Bromley Partnership Strategic Group 
13 December 2012 

 

9 
 

12 COMMUNICATIONS UPDATE 
 

Action 

Susie Clark reported that communications leads from across the 
Partnership were currently developing a joint communications plan 
which would include use of social media.  Work was ongoing to 
establish a Facebook page and Twitter feed for the Partnership which 
would link with more detailed information about the Partnership on the 
Bromley Knowledge website. 
Photography would be undertaken shortly for the ‘Keep Safe’ advice 
booklet.  This would also include some video footage which would be 
available via the Internet. 
The next edition of the Safer Bromley News would be published 
shortly and partners were encouraged to submit their stories for 
inclusion in future editions. 
 
It was AGREED the update be noted. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
All 
Partners 

13 INFORMATION ITEMS 
 

Action 

(a) The Safer Bromley Awards would be held on Thursday 14th March 
2013.  The deadline for nominations was 11th January 2013 and 
partners were encouraged to submit their nominations for the three 
categories; ‘Community Champions’, ‘Above and Beyond’ and 
‘Working Together’. 

 
(b) A commendation had been awarded to Bromley firefighters who 

had used their training and first aid equipment to save a man’s life 
outside their station by London Assembly Member James Cleverly 
and the Chairman of the Safer Bromley Partnership at a ceremony 
at Bromley Civic Centre on Friday 30th November 2012. 

 
(c) The Borough Commander’s Update for December 2012 had been 

circulated for information. 
 

 
All 
Partners 

14 ANY OTHER BUSINESS 
 

Action 

There was no other business. 
 

 

15 DATE AND TIME OF NEXT MEETING 
 

Action 

All meetings start at 10.00am unless otherwise notified. 
 
Thursday 21st March 2013 
 

 

 
The Meeting ended at 12.23 pm 
 
 
 

Chairman 

Page 11



Page 12

This page is left intentionally blank



 

 1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1 SUMMARY 

 
1.1 This report is presented in order to update the Safer Bromley Partnership on the performance 

achieved against the targets set in the last year Community Safety plan 2012/13. The report 
provides the latest performance monitoring data to 31st December 2012 (Quarter 3). 

 
2 RECOMMENDATION 
 

2.1 The Strategic Group is asked to: 
 

• Note and comment on the performance information contained within the report. 
 

3 BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
 

3.1 This report provides an update of performance at the end of Quarter 3 in the delivery year 
2012/2013. The performance picture across the range of Partnership activity continues to 
be healthy. 

 
3.2 A summary of the “portfolio” of offences and Anti Social Behaviour that are included within 

these overarching targets is provided at Appendix 1. Reporting on individual crime types 
and detail of individual operations will only be made as a routine if achievement against set 
targets is not being made or, in some cases, where the measurable rates of individual 
offences or types of offending are significantly different from expected trends and predicted 
patterns etc.  The management of these operational level issues will be dealt with outside 
of the Strategic Group at the combined Police/Partnership Tactical Tasking and 
Coordination Group chaired by the Borough Police Superintendent. 

 

Performance Indicator 1- Reduction in Numbers of Violent Crimes Within Bromley 
 

3.3 Offences related to Violent Crimes represent 20% (1055) of the Total Notifiable Offences in 
the period of Quarter 3 this year.  The chart overleaf provides more detail. 

 

 
Meeting:   Safer Bromley Partnership Strategic Group 
 
Date:    21st March 2013 
 
Subject:   Performance Management Report Quarter Sep – Dec 2012 
 
Author:  Pratheepan Jeyapragasam, Crime Analyst 
  pratheepan.jeyapragasam@bromley.gov.uk     
 

 

 
Agenda Item 5

Page 13



 

 2

Violent Crimes Comparision

900

950

1000

1050

1100

1150

1200

Q3 2011/12 Q4 2011/12 Q1 2012/13 Q2 2012/13 Q3 2012/13

 
 

3.4 During the period October to December 2012 there were 1055 Total Violent Offences 
reported to the Police.  This represented a reduction of 85(���� 7%) offences compared with 
the same period previous year this includes a reduction of 27 Wounding/GBH offences 
and 43 Harassment offences. 
 

Performance Indicator 2- Reduction in Numbers of Property Crimes Within Bromley 
 

3.5 Total offences to property Crimes represent 65% of the Total Notifiable Offences in the 
period of Quarter 3 this year.  
 

Property Crimes comparision

3200

3300

3400

3500

3600

3700

Q2 2011/12 Q3 2011/12 Q4 2011/12 Q1 2012/13 Q2 2012/13 Q3 2012/13

  
 

3.6 During the October to December period of there were 3,413 Total Property related 
Offences reported to the Police, this represented a decrease of 247 (����7%) offences 
compared with the same period previous year. 
 

Page 14



 

 3

3.7 During this reporting period, the Borough had experienced 876 Burglaries, 162 Robberies, 
1856 Theft & Handling and 519 Criminal Damages. Whilst the reduction in levels of overall 
property crime are positive, it should be noted that, compared with the same period in the 
previous year, Robberies were decreased by 14% (27 offences). In relation to Burglaries, 
Theft & Handling and Criminal Damage, all these offences are decreased.  They were 
decreased by 6% (52 offences), 2% (40 offences) and 19% (128 offences) respectively.  

 
Performance Indicator 3 Reduction in Levels of Recorded Anti Social Behaviour 
 

Total Anti Social Behaviour

3000

3500

4000

4500

5000

5500

6000

6500

Jul – Sep 11 Oct- Dec 11 Jan- Mar 12 Apr-Jun 12 Jul – Sep 12 Oct- Dec 12

 
 

 Oct- Dec 11 Jan- Mar 12 Apr- Jun 12 Jul – Sep 12 Oct- Dec 12 

Noise & Nuisance 891 809 931 1162 589 

Graffiti 961 581 1108 787 530 

Fly Tipping 
Investigation 105 123 146 170 124 

ASB to Council 116 134 108 126 81 

ASB to Police 2497 2276 2291 2999 2116 

Total ABS 4570 3923 4584 5244 3440 

 
3.8 During the reporting period, the Borough has experienced a reduction of 302 (37%) incidents 

of ASB reported when compared with the same period last year. 
 

Page 15



 

 4

Total Noise& Nuisance

0

200

400

600

800

1000

1200

1400

1600

Q2 2011/12 Q3 2011/12 Q4 2011/12 Q1 2012/13 Q2 2012/13 Q3 2012/13

 
 

3.9 As can be seen from the figure above, during the reporting period (October to December  
12), the Borough has experienced a reduction of 302 (34%) incidents of Noise and Nuisance 
ASB reported when compared with the same period last year. 
 
 
 

Total Fly Tipping

0

20

40

60

80

100

120

140

160

180

Q2 2011/12 Q3 2011/12 Q4 2011/12 Q1 2012/13 Q2 2012/13 Q3 2012/13

 
 

3.10 As can be seen from the figure above, during the reporting period, the Borough has 
experienced a reduction of 19 incidents of Fly Tipping ASB reported when compared with 
the same period last year. 
 
 

Page 16



 

 5

Graffiti Calls

0

200

400

600

800

1000

1200

1400

Q1 2011/12 Q2 2011/12 Q3 2011/12 Q4 2011/12 Q1 2012/13 Q2 2012/13 Q3 2012/13

 
 

3.11 As can be seen from the figure above, during the reporting period, the Borough has 
experienced a reduction of 431 incidents of Graffiti ASB reported when compared with the 
same period last year. 
 

Total ASB calls to Police

1500

1700

1900

2100

2300

2500

2700

2900

3100

3300

3500

Q2 2011/12 Q3 2011/12 Q4 2011/12 Q1 2012/13 Q2 2012/13 Q3 2012/13

 
 

3.12 During this reporting period it is noted that there was a reduction of 381 incidents reported to 
police regarding ASB compared with the same period last year. 
 

Page 17



 

 6

Total ASB to Council

0

20

40

60

80

100

120

140

160

Q2 2011/12 Q3 2011/12 Q4 2011/12 Q1 2012/13 Q2 2012/13 Q3 2012/13

 
 
 

3.13 During October to December 2012 the Borough has experienced a reduction of 35 incidents 
of ASB reported when compared with the same period last year. 
 

Performance Indicator 4 Increased Confidence in the Fact that Bromley is a Safe Place 
 

3.14 In relation to this performance indicator, (Question 74AB :) “To what extent do you agree that the 

police and local council are dealing with the ASB and crime issues that matter in this area” has not been 

published in the Q3 report by Met police.  
3.15 In relation to perception abut crime and ASB less Bromley residents (����3% -compared with 
same period last year) are worried about ASB and crime in their area. See below  

 

Page 18



 

 7

 

Page 19



 

 8

APPENDIX 1 
 
Performance Indicator Portfolios: 
 

Violence Portfolio 

Offences Supporting Measures 
Violence with Injury Domestic Violence 

Common Assault Domestic Violence Sanction Detection Rate 

Harassment Domestic Violence Arrest Rate 

Threats/ Conspiracy to Kill Serious Youth Violence 

Blackmail Knife Enabled Crime 

Kidnapping/ False Imprisonment Knife Enabled Crime Sanctioned Det. Rate 

 Gun Crime 

 Gun Crime Sanctioned Det. Rate 

 Most Serious Violence 

 Most Serious Violence Sanctioned Det. Rate 

 
 

Property Portfolio 

Offences: 
Personal Robbery 

Commercial Robbery 

Total Robbery 

Residential Burglary 

Non-Residential Burglary 

Theft/Taking Motor Vehicles 

Theft From Motor Vehicles 

Theft From Shops 

Theft From Person 

Theft of Pedal Cycles 

Other Theft 

Criminal Damage 
 

Anti Social Behaviour Portfolio 

ASB: 
Noise & Nuisance 

ASB to Council 

Fly Tipping 

ASB to Police 

Graffiti 
 

Page 20



 

 1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1 SUMMARY 
 

1.1 This report is an update, further to the Report presented to the Partnership on December 13th  
2012,  as requested by the Partnership Members.  The Report is in relation to further analysis 
of Burglary in Bromley between April and September 2012.  The two burglary offences 
previously covered by the analysis are presented again in this report with further analysis of 
the Wards, as requested. The data is presented under each of these two offences, being 
burglary in a dwelling and burglary in other buildings 

 

1.2 The analysis reiterates the key factors in the current pattern of residential burglary and it is 
proposed that these key factors be tackled in order to facilitate a reduction in offending.  
Further, the report recognises the importance of analysis of victim data and recommends that 
further work is undertaken in this area. 

 

2 RECOMMENDATION 
 
2.1 The Strategic Group is asked to note the original information contained within this report 

and the additional analysis, by Ward, of times that offences were reported.  
 
2.2 Continue regular monitoring of trends in details of Burglaries and task resources as 

suggested by that analysis. 
 
 

3 BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
 

3.1 At the October 2012 Safer Bromley Partnership, the Performance Management Report 
revealed a 17% increase in Burglary in the previous quarter.  Further, it was noted that 
Bromley’s rate was higher than the London average.  In the subsequent meeting a report 
was provided investigating the reasons for this increase.  The Partnership asked for further 
analysis of the statistics by Ward, which is provided in the Report, paragraphs 3.7 and 3.13.  
The original data is also reproduced for consistency. The reference still refers to the original 
time period of 1st April 2012 to 30th September 2012. 

 
 
 

 
Meeting:   Safer Bromley Partnership Strategic Group 
 
Date:    21st March 2013 
 
Subject:   Residential Burglary Analysis (April – September 2012) - Update 
 
Author:  Pratheepan Jeyapragasam, Senior Crime Analyst 
  pratheepan.jeyapragasam@bromley.gov.uk     
 

 

 
Agenda Item 6

Page 21



 

 2

 
3.2 From April 2012 to June 2012 (Q1), Bromley’s rate of Burglary has been substantially 

higher (162 offences) than the Metropolitan Police average. Between July 2012 (Q2) and 
September 2012 Bromley’s rate was also higher than the average for most similar 
Metropolitan Police average, although this trend appears to have decreased (94 offences) 
over the Q2 period.  

 
3.3 Chart 1 below shows the proportion of Total Burglary falling into the two types of 

burglary in this year. 
 

Breakdown of burglary offences in this year

62%

38%

Burglary in A Dwelling Burglary in Other Buildings
 

 
3.4 As shown in the Chart above, 62% of burglary offences were Burglary in A Dwelling 

offences. 
 
Burglary in A Dwelling 

Monthly Burglary in A Dwelling Performance 

0

20

40

60

80

100

120

140

160

180

200

2011/12 132 166 120 110 141 152

2012/13 178 138 180 124 184 163

April May June July August September

 
 
 
 
 

Page 22



 

 3

3.5 As shown above, Burglary in a Dwelling Offence numbers peaked in April, June and August 
this year, which is contrary to the seasonal trends. 

Analysis - Wards for Burglary in A Dwelling

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

80

B
IC
K
L
E
Y

B
IG
G
IN
 H
IL
L

B
R
O
M
LE
Y
 C
O
M
M
O
N

B
R
O
M
LE
Y
 T
O
W
N

C
H
E
L
S
F
IE
LD

C
H
IS
LE
H
U
R
S
T

C
L
O
C
K
 H
O
U
S
E

C
O
P
E
R
S
 C
O
P
E

C
R
A
Y
 E
A
S
T

C
R
A
Y
 W
E
S
T

C
R
Y
S
T
A
L 
P
A
LA
C
E

D
A
R
W
IN

F
A
R
N
B
O
R
O
U
G
H

H
A
Y
E
S

K
E
L
S
E
Y

M
O
T
T
IN
G
H
A
M

O
R
P
IN
G
T
O
N

P
E
N
G
E

P
E
T
T
S
 W
O
O
D

P
LA
IS
T
O
W

S
H
O
R
T
LA
N
D
S

W
E
S
T
 W
IC
K
H
A
M

 
 
3.6 There are three main hotspot locations for Burglary in a Dwelling, Penge, Clockhouse, and 

Plaistow.  Based on current issues affecting Bromley Borough these locations remain the 
main focus for the Police. 

 

 Wards for Burglary in A Dwelling by Per 1000 Properties

0.00

2.00

4.00

6.00

8.00

10.00

12.00

B
IC
KL
EY

B
IG
G
IN
 H
IL
L

B
R
O
M
LE
Y
 C
O
M
M
O
N

B
R
O
M
LE
Y
 T
O
W
N

C
H
EL
SF
IE
LD

C
H
IS
LE
H
U
R
S
T

C
LO
C
K
 H
O
U
S
E

C
O
PE
R
S
 C
O
P
E

C
R
AY
 E
A
S
T

C
R
AY
 W
E
ST

C
R
YS
TA
L 
PA
LA
C
E

D
A
R
W
IN

FA
R
N
B
O
R
O
U
G
H

H
A
Y
ES

K
EL
SE
Y

M
O
TT
IN
G
H
A
M

O
R
PI
N
G
TO
N

P
EN
G
E

P
ET
TS
 W
O
O
D

P
LA
IS
TO
W

S
H
O
R
TL
AN
D
S

W
E
S
T 
W
IC
K
H
AM

 
3.7 The chart above shows that Clockhouse, Crystal Palace and Plaistow were the three wards 

which have highest Burglary offences reported in the reporting period compared with 
number of properties in each wards   

 
3.8 84% of the total Burglary in a Dwelling Offences were reported within 24 hours period this 

shows that Burglary actually occurred within the 24 hours. 
 

Page 23



 

 4

Analysis using Committed Date Range- Days for Burglary in A 

Dwelling

0

20

40

60

80

100

120

140

MON TUE WED THU FRI SAT SUN

 
 
3.9 Based on the above, 84% offences over the past two Quarters, there is a peak on Friday 

and Wednesday for offences. However, on further analysis, they are fairly spread out 
throughout the weekdays. It must be noted that weekend has seen the least number of 
offences reported. 

 

Analysis using 24 hours Committed- Wards for Burglary in A Dwelling

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

BI
C
K
LE
Y

BI
G
G
IN
 H
IL
L

B
R
O
M
LE
Y
 C
O
M
M
O
N

B
R
O
M
LE
Y
 T
O
W
N

C
H
E
LS
FI
E
LD

C
H
IS
LE
H
U
R
ST

C
LO
C
K 
H
O
U
S
E

C
O
PE
R
S
 C
O
PE

C
R
A
Y
 E
A
S
T

C
R
A
Y
 W
E
S
T

C
R
Y
S
TA
L 
P
AL
AC
E

D
AR
W
IN

FA
R
N
BO
R
O
U
G
H

H
AY
E
S

K
E
LS
EY

M
O
T
TI
N
G
H
AM

O
R
P
IN
G
TO
N

PE
N
G
E

P
E
TT
S
 W
O
O
D

P
LA
IS
TO
W

SH
O
R
T
LA
N
D
S

W
E
ST
 W
IC
K
H
A
M

 
 
3.10 As shown above, Penge, Clockhouse, and Plaistow were the three main hotspots for 

Burglary in a Dwelling which was reported within 24 hours. 
 

Page 24



 

 5

Analysis using 24 hours Reported- Time for Burglary in A Dwelling

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

40

45

50

00
:0
0 
- 1
:0
0

01
:0
1  
-  2
:0
0

02
:0
1 
- 3
:0
0

03
:0
1  
- 4
:0
0

04
:0
1 
- 5
:0
0

05
:0
1 
- 6
:0
0

06
:0
1 
- 7
:0
0

07
:0
1 
- 8
:0
0

08
:0
1 
- 9
:0
0

09
:0
1 
- 1
0:
00

10
:0
1 
-  1
1:
00

11
:0
1 
- 1
2:
00

12
:0
1 
-  1
3:
00

13
:0
1 
- 1
4:
00

14
:0
1 
- 1
5 :
00

15
:0
1  
-  1
6:
00

16
:0
1 
- 1
7:
00

17
:0
1  
- 1
8:
00

18
:0
1 
- 1
9:
00

19
:0
1 
- 2
0:
00

20
:0
1  
- 2
1:
00

21
:0
1 
- 2
2:
00

22
:0
1 
- 2
3:
00

23
:0
1 
-  0
0:
00

 
 
3.11 Burglary in a Dwelling reports seems to peek between the hours of 18:00 -19:01 and 22:01-

23:00, when about 43% of reports were received during 18:01-23:00 period, of these 84% 
of the properties were empty more than one hour. 

 
3.12 136 Burglary in a Dwelling offences were reported to police in this reporting period where 

properties were empty when this crime happened. 

Burglary in A Dwelling data by reported time for the 5 top offending wards

0

2

4

6

8

10

12

14

16

18

20

0
0
:0
0
 -
 4
:0
0

1
2
:0
1
 -
 1
6
:0
0

1
6
:0
1
 -
 2
0
:0
0

2
0
:0
1
 -
 0
0
:0
0

0
0
:0
0
 -
 4
:0
0

0
4
:0
1
 -
 8
:0
0

0
8
:0
1
 -
 1
2
:0
0

1
2
:0
1
 -
 1
6
:0
0

1
6
:0
1
 -
 2
0
:0
0

2
0
:0
1
 -
 0
0
:0
0

0
0
:0
0
 -
 4
:0
0

0
4
:0
1
 -
 8
:0
0

0
8
:0
1
 -
 1
2
:0
0

1
2
:0
1
 -
 1
6
:0
0

1
6
:0
1
 -
 2
0
:0
0

2
0
:0
1
 -
 0
0
:0
0

0
0
:0
0
 -
 4
:0
0

0
4
:0
1
 -
 8
:0
0

0
8
:0
1
 -
 1
2
:0
0

1
2
:0
1
 -
 1
6
:0
0

1
6
:0
1
 -
 2
0
:0
0

2
0
:0
1
 -
 0
0
:0
0

0
0
:0
0
 -
 4
:0
0

0
4
:0
1
 -
 8
:0
0

0
8
:0
1
 -
 1
2
:0
0

1
2
:0
1
 -
 1
6
:0
0

1
6
:0
1
 -
 2
0
:0
0

2
0
:0
1
 -
 0
0
:0
0

BROMLEY TOWN CLOCK HOUSE CRYSTAL PALACE PENGE PLAISTOW

 
 
3.13 The above chart shows the number of Burglaries reported to the police, this is illustrated by 

times, and the chart shows the top five offending wards. Overall there are no specific trends 
identified, reported times varied in each Ward. 

 
 

Page 25



 

 6

Accused Home Borough - Burglary in A Dwelling

0%

5%

10%

15%

20%

25%

30%

35%

40%

NEIGHBOURING BOROUGHS BROMLEY OTHER

 
 
3.14 As can be seen 75% of accused offenders live out of Borough mainly, 28% live in 

Greenwich and another 28% live other Police force areas.  
 
3.15 There were no specific targets victims identified, in general there were some vacant 

properties targeted either renovated or residents on holiday 
 

Page 26



 

  

1

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Reason for report 

To provide full feedback from the evaluation of the pilot perpetrator programme run in Bromley 
from April 2012 – June 2012 along with plans for future project delivery.  

________________________________________________________________________________ 

1. RECOMMENDATION(S) 

2.1 That providing a perpetrator programme become part of the domestic abuse strategy and 
workplan, subject to funding from MOPAC and delivery partners.  

 

 
Meeting:   Safer Bromley Partnership Strategic Group 
 
Date:    21st March 2013 
 
Subject:   Perpetrator Programme: Domestic Abuse 
 
Author:  Clare Elcombe, Domestic Abuse Strategy Coordinator 
  clare.elcombe@bromley.gov.uk     
 

Agenda Item 7

Page 27



 

  

2

3. COMMENTARY 

 Introduction 

3.1 After identifying perpetrator provision as a gap in domestic abuse services in Bromley a pilot 
perpetrator programme was commissioned to run from April 2012 to June 2012. Funding was 
secured from the Police, Children’s Social Care and by way of a grant from the Portfolio Holder 
for Public Protection and Safety, totalling £28k and to include a formal external evaluation of 
the project by Greenwich University. 

3.2 TRYangle were commissioned as they deliver programmes in Bexley, Greenwich and 
Lewisham. TRYangle delivered a twelve week group course for men, up to 20 individual 
counselling sessions for each man, a support group for the ex-/partners of the men attending, 
up to 20 individual counselling sessions for each woman and provided a support worker for 
women who required individual support. The men’s group was delivered in the evening at 
Community House in Bromley and the women’s group at Blenheim Children & Family Centre 
(who also provided crèche facilities). The one-to-one sessions were held in the Bromley Relate 
offices. 

 Referrals 

3.3 The number of referrals was low – with only twelve received in time for the programme. These 
were, however, all appropriate for the project and TRYangle did not deem any of the men 
referred unsuitable to be invited into the programme. 

  

  

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

3.4 These numbers are disappointing as the project had capacity for up to 15 men and their 
partners. 

Possible reasons for low referrals 

3.5 Project not well known: It takes time for any new service to become embedded, particularly 
as Bromley is such a large borough with so many relevant agencies. TRYangle report that in 

 Outcome  Number of referrals 

 Engaged fully  4 

 Unable to attend – on tag  1 

 Unable to attend – other commitments  2 

 Engaged then dropped out  2 

 Did not engage / declined  3 

 Referral received too late (after session 4)  4 

 Total Referrals  16 

Page 28



 

  

3

other areas it generally takes around six months of continuous operation before they see the 
expected number of referrals being made. 

3.6 Not publicly advertised: As the project was only a pilot with no guarantee of continuation, the 
decision was made to not advertise publically for self-referrals.   

3.7 Large caseloads for frontline workers: Although the project was specifically advertised to 
professionals working with families (through direct emails, team meetings and communication 
from management) a number reported back informally that they did not have the capacity to 
review their entire caseload within a short timeframe in order to identify potential referrals. 

3.8 Short timescale for referrals: The timescale for referrals to the programme was tight, with the 
project opening for referrals six weeks before the course began and the group becoming 
closed after four sessions.  

Referral source 

3.9 As expected, the bulk of the referrals came from Children’s Social Care, though it is anticipated 
that should the project continue referrals will increase from other agencies as partnerships are 
built. Other programmes have built strong referral links with Police Community Safety Units 
and Probation services, which could be a key area of development. 
 

 Referral Source  Number of referrals 

 Children’s Social Care  14 

 London Probation Trust  1 

 Welcare in Bromley  1 

  

Three month evaluation 

3.10 The cohort were contacted after three months to take part in an evaluation – of these all the 
men and women took part in TRYangle’s informal evaluation (which took the form of a 
questionnaire), and all the women and three of the men took part in the external evaluation 
with Greenwich University which comprised of a lengthy questionnaire (which they had also 
completed before joining the programme) and a focus group. 

3.11 It is recognised in this evaluation that in the course of the programme it became apparent that 
one of the couples (man D and woman Y) were actually in a relationship where she was the 
primary perpetrator – therefore their results are not indicative of the changes we might expect 
in participants.  

 Informal Evaluation 

3.12 TRYangle own internal evaluation of the cohort three months after they exited the programme, 
reported the following: 

Page 29



 

  

4

Men’s behaviour: 

In the last three months (since finishing the 
programme) G 

N
e

v
e

r 

R
a

re
ly

 

O
c
c
a

s
io

n
a

lly
 

I called my partner names 25% 75% - 

I swore at my partner 25% 75% - 

I yelled and screamed at my partner 50% 50% - 

I treated my partner like an inferior 75% - - 

I monitored my partner’s time and made then 
account for their whereabouts 

100% - - 

I used our money or made important financial 
decisions without consulting my partner 

75% 25% - 

I was jealous or suspicious of my partner’s friends 50% 25% 25% 

I accused my partner of having an affair with 
another man 

50% 25% 25% 

I interfered in my partner’s relationship with other 
family members 

75% - 25% 

I tried to prevent my partner from doing things to 
help themselves 

100% - - 

I restricted my partner’s use of the telephone 100% - - 

I told my partner that their feelings were irrational or 
crazy 

100% - - 

I blamed my partner for my problems 75% - 25% 

I tried to make my partner feel crazy 100% - - 

  

12 week evaluation - men 

§ 50% had separated from their partner in the three months since completing the 
programme. 

§ 100% reported a lasting positive effect 

§ 75% reported improved communication with their ex/partner 

Page 30



 

  

5

§ 100% reported their quality of life had improved since attending the course 

§ 50% reported their use of abusive behaviour had completely stopped, and a further 25% 
that it has reduced. 

§ 75% reported there had been no violence since attending the course while a further 25% 
stated there had been less. 

§ 100% reported no Police involvement since they attended the course. 

12 week evaluation – women 

§ 75% reported a lasting positive while 25% reported a temporary positive effect 

§ 100% stated the programme was very much worthwhile 

§ 50% stated the support for their partner was very effective, and a further 25% stated it 
was somewhat effective. 

§ Level of violence – 50% stated violent behaviour had been completely eliminated, with a 
further 25% stating it had reduced 

§ Abusive behaviour – 50% stated that abusive behaviour had completely stopped, with a 
further 25% stating there was less. 

§ 100% reported no Police involvement. 

Formal Quantitative Evaluation 

3.13 Due to the low numbers taking part in the evaluation this is presented as an individual narrative 
to reflect the impact on the individual rather than impact on specific measures. We are unable 
to make any statistical analysis of significance of changes in scores. The full quantitative report 
is available in the appendices. 

3.14 Man B – reported reduced incidence of dominating, isolating, emotional and verbal abusive 
behaviour. Slightly worse depression score (increased 2 points out of a scale of 28). Improved 
perceived health. Very slightly worse self-esteem (by 4 points out of a scale of 30) and self-
efficacy (by 2 points out of a scale of 40). Slightly higher self-perceived need for support in 
parenting (by 7 points out of a scale of 100) and a reduced alcohol intake. 

3.15 Man C - reduced incidence of dominating and isolating behaviour, the same score for 
emotional and verbal abusive behaviour. Improved depression score and perceived health. 
Improved self-esteem, and slightly worse self-efficacy (by 4 points out of a scale of 40). The 
same self-perceived need for support in parenting and the same reported alcohol intake 
(none). 

3.16 Man D - reduced incidence of dominating and isolating behaviour, but slightly worse for 
emotional and verbal abusive behaviour (by 10 points out of a scale of 28). Improved 
depression score. Worse perceived health (by 25 points out of a scale of 100). Improved self-

Page 31



 

  

6

esteem and the same level of self-efficacy. An improved self-perceived need for support in 
parenting and the same reported alcohol intake (none). 

3.17 Woman Z – reported less dominating, isolating, emotional and verbal abusive behaviour. 
Reported improved depression and perception of health, and slightly worse self-esteem (by 5 
points out of a scale of 30) and slightly worse self-efficacy (by 2 points out of a scale of 40). 

3.18 Woman X – reported less dominating, isolating, emotional and verbal abusive behaviour. 
Reported improved depression and perception of health, and improved self-esteem and self-
efficacy. 

3.19 Woman Y – reported slightly worse dominating and isolating behaviour (by 1 point out of a 
scale of 20) and slightly worse emotional and verbal abusive behaviour (by 2 points out of a 
scale of 20). Reported improved depression and perception of health, and improved self-
esteem and self-efficacy. 

3.20 Woman V – reported less dominating, isolating, emotional and verbal abusive behaviour. 
Reported improved depression and perception of health, and improved self-esteem and self-
efficacy. 

 Formal Qualitative Evaluation 

3.21 Focus groups were held, facilitated by the researchers from Greenwich University. The full 
qualitative report is available in the appendices. Please note all names have been changed 

3.22 The major impression on the men taking part in the programme which came through in the 
focus groups was the impact it had on them regarding their children: 

  “the first time I was in here I cried , I was sat down like my little girls and they were standing up 
and they were shouting and it physically moved me, I actually put myself in my child’s shoes 
and I sat there crying, it made me look at how when I bark at them so it’s ...even talking about 
it now I get sort of goose bumps because it really did move me �it really sort of hit home, yeah 
it did.” (John) 

3.23 In addition they were very positive about the staff: 
For them to come in here and sit down with a bunch of men knowing that some of us that’s 
here have all hit women, so for them to come and do that... (Joe) they don't judge us at all 
(John) Yeah” (Joe) 

3.24 Regarding the techniques and knowledge gained on the programme the men were equally 
positive: 

  “They teach methods of how to control yourself and how to calm yourself down�� there’s 
different ways of dealing with things.” (John) 
 
“I think the consequences, knowing what the consequences could be�� you basically step 
out of your shoes for a few moments and look at yourself, it really scares you, you know what I 
mean, don’t really want to go back there” (Sam) 
 

Page 32



 

  

7

“I realised as well how my actions affect other people and to take a step back and think about 
that before you act really, that whatever you do, it does affect someone else”  (Sam) 

Conclusion 

3.25 Although the numbers on the pilot were low and no statistical analysis can be done regarding 
the changes in their psychological assessments because of this, the qualitative evaluation is 
exceptionally positive; and as other evaluations of similar projects have been positive (such as 
the Domestic Violence Intervention Project – available here: 
http://www.dvip.org/assets/files/downloads/Improving%20women%20and%20childrens%20saf
ety.pdf) it is recommended that we continue with this project as part of providing a holistic 
coordinated community response to domestic abuse in the borough. Since the closure of the 
pilot TRYangle have received at least 25 referrals for Bromley residents, most of which they 
were unable to work with for funding reasons.  

Future delivery 

3.26 A number of practical issues were identified when exploring options for future delivery – firstly 
that having a closed programme with a fixed start date means than some men will be referred 
but face a lengthy wait before being able to join the programme, and perhaps lose their 
motivation to engage because of this; and secondly, that there may not be enough demand in 
Bromley to fill a full, permanent programme (which would have capacity for around 50 couples 
per year). 

3.27 In order to overcome the first issue TRYangle have previously run rolling programmes which 
men can join at any point provided they complete all the sessions. This programme is 24 
weeks long – providing additional time with the men and women to effect change. Discussions 
have been held with Lewisham regarding sharing a service and although this is still subject to 
procurement arrangements it has been provisionally agreed that they wish to com-commission 
a full programme which would serve both Bromley and Lewisham borough residents. This 
would be held in a venue close to the border of the boroughs and be open for referrals both 
from professionals and individuals. 

3.28 TRYangle have costed a full cross-borough programme at £90k per annum, providing work 
with up to 50 men and their female ex/partners. This cost would be split 50/50 with Lewisham. 
A bid has been submitted to MOPAC for £30k per annum, £15k has been identified by the 
Police to contribute for 2013/14 and Children’s Social Care have committed to contribute but 
budgets have yet to be confirmed. 

3.29 Should the funding bid with MOPAC be successful a Service Level Agreement and targets will 
be set regarding referrals, engagement levels and outcomes which will be monitored quarterly 
and will inform ongoing funding decisions. 

4. POLICY IMPLICATIONS 

4.1  With agreement, that a commitment to providing services for perpetrators be included in the 
upcoming Domestic Abuse Strategy. Currently strategy focuses on services for victims of 
domestic abuse and criminal justice outcomes for perpetrators. The addition of voluntary 
services for perpetrators will improve the preventative aspect of the strategy.  

Page 33



 

  

8

5. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 

5.1 TRYangle have costed a full two-borough programme at £90k per annum, providing work with 
up to 50 men and their female ex/partners. This cost would be split 50/50 with Lewisham.  

5.2 For 2013/14  £15k has been contributed by the Police, Children’s Social Care have committed 
to contribute but budgets have yet to be confirmed and the balance has been included in the 
bid to MOPAC. For 2014/15-2017/18 £30k per annum has been included in the MOPAC bid. 

5.3 Until the outcome of the MOPAC bid is known precise budgets cannot be set. 

6. PERSONNEL IMPLICATIONS 

6.1  None. Minor commitment required from Domestic Abuse Strategy Coordinator and relevant 
stakeholders to oversee project. 

 

Non-Applicable Sections: Legal 

Background Documents: 
(Access via Contact 
Officer) 

[Title of document and date] 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 34



 

  

9

Appendix 1: Formal Quantitive Evaluation 
 
Evaluation of Bromley TRYangle Pilot Intervention Interim Report 
Lisa Wales and Gail Gilchrist 
Centre for Applied Social Research, University of Greenwich 
18 January 2013 
 
Methods 
 
Eight men and five of their female (ex)partners assessed as eligible for participation in the TRYangle 
intervention pilot self-completed a questionnaire prior to beginning the intervention.  Only four men 
and four women completed the TRYangle group intervention and were sent a follow-up questionnaire 
3 months after completing the intervention to determine any changes in their behaviour. The end of 
treatment follow-up was completed by TRYangle staff using a different questionnaire, and the data 
are not included in this interim report.  
Results from the questionnaires were compared pre intervention and 3 month post intervention for 
men and women separately.  
Due to the small numbers that entered or completed the intervention, it was not possible to determine 
whether any changes in outcomes were statistically significant. Therefore, data are presented for 
each participant to examine individual change in outcomes. 
Table 1 lists the questionnaires that were administered. 
 
Table 1. Questionnaires self-administered 
 

Questionnaire Men Women 
Revised Conflict Tactics Scale Short Form (CTS2SF) (20 questions) x x 

PMWI-short (male/female version) x x 

PhQ-9 x x 

EQ.5D.5L Quality of Life  x x 

Rosenberg’s Self-Esteem Scale (SES)  x x 

General Self-Efficacy Scale (GSE) x x 

The Parent Concern Questionnaire (PCQ)  x x 
(follow up)  

Alcohol Use Disorder Identification Test: Interview version (AUDIT) x  

University of Rhode Island Change Assessment Domestic Violence (URICA.DV) x  

Alcohol-Related Aggression Questionnaire (ARAQ)  x  

 
 
Results 
 
Males 
Eight male participants completed the pre intervention questionnaire, of those half completed the 
TRYangle intervention. However, only three of them completed the 3 month post intervention follow-
up questionnaire.  
 
1. Intimate partner violence 
The degree of intimate partner violence (IPV) was quantified using the Revised Conflict Tactics Scale 
short form (CTS2SF) and PMWI-short (male version).  
 
The CTS2SF is a 20-item questionnaire using an 8 stage likert scale to score the frequency of 

Page 35



 

  

10

agreement to each item on the questionnaire. For the purpose of this interim report the scale was 
recoded to group variables into two categories 1) No, this has not happened in the past 
year/3months, 2) Yes, this has happened in the past year/3 months (time period in relation to pre-
intervention and 3 month post intervention questionnaire respectively).   
 
Table 2 shows the number and proportion of participants who had perpetrated each of the 20 
violence statements.  The results should be interpreted with caution as pre intervention data 
examines the previous 12 month period whereas the post intervention data measures the previous 3 
month period.  
 
Table 2. CTS2 SF 
 

 Pre intervention 3 month post 
intervention 

Item Yes in 12 
months for all 

eligible 
n=8 (%) 

Yes in the past 12 
months for 
completers 

n= 4 (%) 

Yes in 3 
months post 
intervention 

n=3 
1. I explained my side or suggested a compromise for a 
disagreement with my partner 

6 (75%) 2 (50%) 1 (25%) 
2. My partner explained his or her side or suggested a 
compromise for a disagreement with me 

7 (87.5%) 3 (75%) 1(25%) 
3. I insulted,  swore, shouted  or yelled at my partner 7 (87.5%) 3 (75%) 0 (0%) 
4. My partner insulted,  swore, shouted or yelled at me 6 (75%) 3 (75%)     1 (25%) 
5. I had a sprain, bruise, or small cut, or felt pain the next 
day because of a fight with my partner 

2 (25%) 2 (50%) 0 (0%) 
6. My partner had a sprain, bruise, or small cut, or felt 
pain the next day because of a fight with me 

5 (62.5%) 2 (50%) 0 (0%)  
7. I showed respect for, or showed that I cared about my 
partner’s feeling about an issue we disagreed on 

8 (100%) 4 (100%) 2 (50%)  
8. My partner showed respect for, or showed that they 
cared about my feeling about an issue we disagreed on 

8 (100%) 4 (100%) 1 (25%) 
9. I pushed,  shoved or slapped my partner 4 (50%) 1 (25%) 0 (0%) 
10. My partner pushed,  shoved or slapped me 3 (37.5%) 1 (25%) 0 (0%) 
11. I punched or kicked or beat-up my partner 2 (25%) 1 (25%) 0 (0%) 
12. My partner punched or kicked or beat-up me 3 (37.5%) 2 (50%) 0 (0%)  
13. I destroyed something belonging to my partner or 
threatened to hit my partner 

4 (50%) 2 (50%) 1 (25%) 
14. My partner destroyed something belonging to me or 
threatened to hit me 

2 (25%) 1 (25%) 1 (25%)  
15. I went to see a doctor or needed to see a doctor 
because of a fight with my partner 

0 (0%) 0 (0%) 0 (0%) 

16. My partner went to see a doctor or needed to see a 
doctor because of a fight we had 

0 (0%) 0 (0%) 0 (0%) 

17. I used force (like hitting, holding down, or using a 
weapon) to make my partner have sex 

0 (0%) 0 (0%) 0 (0%) 

18. My partner used force (like hitting, holding down, or 
using a weapon) to make me have sex 

0 (0%) 0 (0%) 0 (0%) 

19. I insisted on sex when my partner did not want to or 
insisted on sex without a condom (but did not use physical force) 

0 (0%) 0 (0%) 0 (0%) 

20. My partner insisted on sex when I did not want to or 
insisted on sex without a condom (but did not use physical force) 

0 (0%) 0 (0%) 0 (0%) 

* One male who completed the intervention did not complete the 3 month post intervention questionnaire, % are based on the original 4 completers.  

 

The Psychological Maltreatment of Women Inventory- Male Short Version (PMWI) is a 14-item scale, 

split into two subscales 1) dominance-isolation, 2) emotional-verbal. The dominance-isolation 
subscale measures behaviours related to isolation from resources, demands for subservience, and 
rigid observances of traditional sex roles.. The emotional-verbal subscale measures behaviours 
related to verbal attacks, attempts to demean the partner, and withholding emotional resources. The 

Page 36



 

  

11

higher the total scores the more domineering/isolating the person is and emotionally and verbally 
controlling of their partner. Scores can range between 0–28.  
 
 

Page 37



 

  

12

Tables 3 and 4 show the results of this scale.    
 
Table 3.  PMWI Dominance Isolation subscale 
score 

ID Timeframe Reduced 
score  

Pre   Post 

A  0 - - 

B (completed) 4 0 Yes      -4 

C (completed) 3 0 Yes      -3 

D (completed) 4 0 Yes      -4  

 E  0 -  0 

F  0 - 0 

G (completed)*  0 - - 

H  4 - - 

 
 
* Participant completed the intervention but did not complete the 3 month post 
intervention questionnaire 

 
The results should be interpreted with caution as pre intervention data examines the previous 6 
month period whereas the post intervention data measures the previous 3 month period.      
 
2. Depression 
The Patient Health Questionnaire 9 measures whether an individual is depressed and the severity of 
depression. It uses a 9-item scale and asks over the last 2 weeks, how often have you been bothered 
by any of the following problems?  
 
1. Little interest or pleasure in doing things 
2. Feeling down, depressed, or hopeless 
3. Trouble falling or staying asleep, or sleeping too much 
4. Feeling tired or having little energy 
5. Poor appetite or overeating 
6. Feeling bad about yourself—or that you are a failure or have let yourself or your family down 
7. Trouble concentrating on things, such as reading the newspaper or watching television 
8. Moving or speaking so slowly that other people could have noticed. Or the opposite—being so fidgety or restless that 
you have been moving around a lot more than usual 
9. Thoughts that you would be better off dead, or of hurting yourself in some way 

 
A 4-point likert scale is used to quantify the results. Participants are given the choice of every day 
(coded as 3), More than half the days (2), Several days (1), or, Not at all (0). The sum of items 
specifies it severity of depression, if at all. The presence of a depressive disorder is shown if either a) 

an individual ✓s 4 items as ‘More than half the days’ or above, (one of which corresponds to 

Question #1 and  #2), or b)  an individual ✓s 5 items as ‘More than half the days’ or above, (one of 

which corresponds to Question #1 or  #2). Consider Other Depressive Disorder if there are 2 to 4 ✓s 

in ‘More than half the days’ (one of which corresponds to Question #1 or #2).  
 
 

The Total sum indicates:   
1-4 Minimal depression 
5-9 Mild depression 
10-14 Moderate depression 
15-19 Moderately severe depression 

Table 4. PMWI Emotional Verbal subscale score  

 

ID Timeframe Reduced 
score 

Pre  Post 

A  0 -- - 

B (completed) 1 0 Yes     -1 

C (completed) 0 0 0 

D (completed) 0 10 No   +10 

 E  3 - 0 

F  3 - 0 

G (completed)*  7 - - 

H  2 - - 

Page 38



 

  

13

20-27 Severe depression 

Page 39



 

  

14

 
 
 

Table 5.  Severity of depression – PHQ-9  total 
score 
ID Timeframe Reduced score  

Pre  Post 

A  11 - - 

B (completed) 0 2 No       +2  

C (completed) 2 0 Yes      -2 

D (completed) 10  Yes      -8  

 E  23 -  0 

F  10 - 0 

G (completed)*  4 - - 

H  13 - - 

 
 

 
3. Quality of Life 
Quality of life was measured using a visual analogue scale. Participants were asked how good or bad 
their health was on the day they completed the questionnaire, where 0 was really bad and 100 was 
really good health. We compared participant’s health from baseline to the 3 month post intervention.    
 

We would like to know how good or bad your health is 
TODAY 

Table 6 

Id number Health score Improvement 
in health Pre Post 

A  70 - - 
B (completed) 60 80 +20 
C (completed) 70 80 +10 
D (completed) 100 75 -25 

 E  65 - - 
F  65 - - 
G (completed)*  98 - - 
H  100 100 - 

* Participant completed the intervention but did not complete the 3 month post intervention questionnaire 

 
 
4.  Self-Esteem  
The Rosenburg's Self-Esteem scale (SES) was used to assess levels of self-esteem. This is a 10-
item questionnaire which is scored and totalled to give an overall SES score by which self-esteem is 
measured. The 10-tems are both positively and negatively phrased therefore half of the items are re-
coded to make them all positive before totalling the score. Scores can range between 0-30, if a 
participants total score lies between 15 and 25 they are within the normal range of self-efficacy; 
however if a score is below 15 this suggest low self-esteem.  
 

Page 40



 

  

15

Table 7          Self-Esteem Scale total score 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
* Participant completed the intervention but did not complete the 3 month post intervention questionnaire 

 

 
5.  Self-Efficacy 
The General Self-efficacy scale (GSE) was used to measure participants’ level of self-efficacy, a 
measure of one's own self belief in their ability to complete tasks and reach goals and has a great 
influence over a person’s sense of power and how the individual deals with a situation. The GSE is a 
10 item measure which when summed gives a combined score of between 0-40. The higher the total 
score, the greater ones self-belief in their own ability to affect situations and self-belief. 
 
Table 8   Self-Efficacy Scale total score (SES)  
Id number and  if 
completed the 
intervention 

Self-Efficacy Scale total score 

Baseline 3 Months Difference 

A  28 -       - 
B (completed) 38 36 -2 
C (completed) 34 30 -4 
D (completed) 30 30 0 

 E  29 - - 
F  30 - - 
G (completed) * 39 - - 
H  34 - - 
     

* Participant completed the intervention but did not complete the 3 month post intervention questionnaire 

 
 
6.  Parenting 
The Parenting Concerns Questionnaire was implemented at both pre intervention and 3 month post 
intervention. There are a total of 37 items, scored between the range of 0– not an issue, 1- issue 
present but not severe, or 2- issue present and severe. The total score is calculated to create an 
overall parental concerns image, scores range between 0-74, with the higher the score the greater 
the parental need.  

 Self-Esteem Scale total score 

Pre Post Difference 

A  9 -        - 

B (completed) 30 26 - 4 

C (completed) 20 22 +2 

D (completed) 18 23 +5 

 E  11 -   - 

F  15 -   - 

G (completed)*  27 - - 

H  22 -  - 

Page 41



 

  

16

 
 

Table 9            Parenting Concerns  

 

Id number Which questionnaire Change 

Baseline 3 months 

A  7 - - 

B (completed) 4 11 +7 

C (completed) 3 3 0 

D (completed) 9 4 -5 

 E  10 - - 

F  6 - - 

G (completed)* 1 - - 

H  8 - - 
* Participant completed the intervention but did not complete the 3 month post intervention questionnaire 

 
7. Alcohol 
The Alcohol Use Disorder Identification Test (AUDIT) was used to measure participant’s alcohol 
consumption and alcohol related aggression. It is a 10-item scale which is assessed by the sum of its 
total. A score of 8 or above in men signifies hazardous drinking. Only one participant (ID 35) met 
criteria for hazardous drinking pre intervention.  
 

Table 10            How often do you have a drink containing alcohol? 

 

Id number Timeframe Change 

Pre Post 

A  2 to 4 times a month - - 

B (completed) 2 to 4 times a month Monthly or less Yes  

C (completed) 
Never Never 

No 

D (completed) 
Never Never 

No 

 E  
Monthly or less  -

- 

F  Monthly or less - - 

G (completed)* 2 to 3 times a week - - 

H  Never - - 
* Participant completed the intervention but did not complete the 3 month post intervention questionnaire 

 

 

Table 11            How many drinks containing alcohol do you have on typical day? 
 

Id number 
Timeframe Timeframe 

Pre Post 

A   5 or 6 - -

Page 42



 

  

17

B  (completed) 1 or 2 3 or 4 Yes 
C  (completed) 1 or 2 1 or 2 No
D  (completed) 1 or 2 1 or 2 No

 E   5 or 6  - -
F   Monthly or less - -
G  (completed)* Never - -

H   Never - -

* Participant completed the intervention but did not complete the 3 month post intervention questionnaire 

 

 

Table 12            How often do you have six or more drinks on one occasion? 

 

Id number Timeframe Change 

Pre Post 

A  Less than monthly - - 

B (completed) Never Less than monthly Yes 

C (completed) Never Never No 

D (completed) Never Never No 

 E  Less than monthly - - 

F  Never - - 

G (completed)* Never - - 

H  Never - - 
* Participant completed the intervention but did not complete the 3 month post intervention questionnaire 

 

 

Females 
Five females completed the pre intervention questionnaire. Four females completed the TRYangle 
intervention and the 3 month post intervention questionnaire. 
  
1. Intimate partner violence 
The degree of intimate partner violence (IPV) was quantified using the Revised Conflict Tactics Scale 
short form (CATS2SF) and PMWI-short (female version).  
 
 
Table 13 CTS2 SF 

Items  Yes, in 12 months 
prior to intervention 

n=5 (%) 

Yes, in 3 months  
post intervention 

n=4 (%) 
1. I explained my side or suggested a compromise for a 
disagreement with my partner 

5 (100%) 3 (75%) 

2. My partner explained his or her side or suggested a 
compromise for a disagreement with me 

5 (100%) 3 (75%)  

3. I insulted,  swore, shouted  or yelled at my partner 5 (100%) 3 (75%)  
4. My partner insulted,  swore, shouted or yelled at me 4 (80%) 3 (75%)  
5. I had a sprain, bruise, or small cut, or felt pain the next day 
because of a fight with my partner 

4 (80%) 1 (25%)  

6. My partner had a sprain, bruise, or small cut, or felt pain 
the next day because of a fight with me 

1 (20%) 0 (0%)  

7. I showed respect for, or showed that I cared about my 
partner’s feeling about an issue we disagreed on 

5 (100%) 3 (75%)  

8. My partner showed respect for, or showed that they cared 5 (100%) 3 (75%)  

Page 43



 

  

18

Items  Yes, in 12 months 
prior to intervention 

n=5 (%) 

Yes, in 3 months  
post intervention 

n=4 (%) 
about my feeling about an issue we disagreed on 

9. I pushed,  shoved or slapped my partner 2 (40%) 0 (0%)  
10. My partner pushed,  shoved or slapped me 4 (80%) 1 (25%)  
11. I punched or kicked or beat-up my partner 1 (20%) 0 (0%)  
12. My partner punched or kicked or beat-up me 1 (20%) 0 (0%)  
13. I destroyed something belonging to my partner or 
threatened to hit my partner 

1 (20%)  0 (0%)  

14. My partner destroyed something belonging to me or 
threatened to hit me 

2 (40%) 0 (0%)  

15. I went to see a doctor or needed to see a doctor because 
of a fight with my partner 

0 (0%)   0 (0%)

16. My partner went to see a doctor or needed to see a doctor 
because of a fight we had 

0 (0%)   0 (0%)

17. I used force (like hitting, holding down, or using a weapon) 
to make my partner have sex 

0 (0%)   0 (0%)

18. My partner used force (like hitting, holding down, or using 
a weapon) to make me have sex 

0 (0%)   0 (0%)

19. I insisted on sex when my partner did not want to or insisted on 
sex without a condom (but did not use physical force) 

0 (0%)  0 (0%) 

20. My partner insisted on sex when I did not want  to or insisted on 
sex without a condom (but did not use physical force) 

2 (40%) 1 (25%)  

 

The results should be interpreted with caution as pre intervention data examines the previous 12 
month period whereas the post intervention data measures the previous 3 month period.  
 

Table 14    PMWI Dominance Isolation subscale  
score 

 

 Timefrrame Reduced 
score  

Pre Post 

Z  (completed) 14 7 Yes (-7) 

Y  (completed) 15 0 Yes (-15) 

X  (completed) 0 1 No (+1) 

W   0 - - 

V  (completed) 5 0     Yes  (-5) 

 Total 5 4   

 

 
The dominance-isolation subscale measures partner behaviours related to isolation from resources, 
demands for subservience, and rigid observances of traditional sex roles. The emotional-verbal 
subscale measures partner behaviours related to verbal attacks, attempts to demean, and 
withholding emotional resources. The higher the total scores the more domineering/isolating the 
participant considers their partner to be and the more emotionally and verbally controlling they 
consider their partner to be. 
The results should be interpreted with caution as pre intervention data examines the previous 6 
month period whereas the post intervention data measures the previous 3 month period.  
  
2. Depression 
 
Table 16        Severity of depression – PHQ-9  total score 

Table 15    PMWI Emotional Verbal subscale score  
  

 Timeframe Reduced 

score Pre Post 

Z (completed) 21 10 Yes   (-11) 

Y (completed) 7 0 Yes    (-7) 

X (completed) 6 8 No      (+2) 

W  11 - - 

V (completed) 16 2 Yes   (-14) 

 Total 5 4  

Page 44



 

  

19

Count 

Id number PHQ-9 Change in score  

Pre Post 

Z (completed) 5 3 -2 

Y (completed) 8 1 -7 

X (completed) 8 7 -1 

W  2 - - 

V (completed) 8 3 -5 

      

 

Page 45



 

  

20

3. Quality of Life 
 

Table 17        We would like to know how good or bad your health 
is TODAY  - 100- GOOD   

Count 

Id number Health score Change in health 

Pre  Post 

Z (completed) 45 75 +30 

Y (completed) 70 80 +10 

X (completed) 40 50 +10 

W  93 - - 

V (completed) 60 80 +20 

 

 
4.  Self-Esteem  
 
Table 18   Self-Esteem Scale total score 

Id number and  if 
completed the 
intervention 

Self-Esteem Scale total score 

Pre  Post Change 

Z (Completed) 30 25      -5 

Y (Completed) 20 22 +2 

X (Completed) 17 21 +4 

W   21 - - 

V (Completed) 20 27 +7 

 
 
5.  Self-Efficacy 
Table 19        General Self-Efficacy total score 

 General Self-Efficacy total score 

Pre Post Change 

Z  (Completed) 36 34 -2 

Y  (Completed) 29 30 +1 

X  (Completed) 27 34 +7 

W   - 36 - 

V  (Completed) 29 38 +9 

 

Page 46



 

  

21

 
 
 
 

 

Lisa Wales and Gail Gilchrist 

November 2012 

A FOCUS 

GROUP 

REPORT 

“It physically moved me, I actually put myself in my child’s 
shoes and I sat there crying”: A qualitative study of the 
experiences of perpetrators and victims of Intimate Partner 
Violence participating in the Bromley TRYangle 
Programme.  

Appendix 2: Formal Quantitative Evaluation 

Page 47



 

  

22

 

Table of Contents 

 

1. ......................................................................................... Introduction  3 

2. .................................................................................. The Intervention.  3 

3. ........................................................................................ Methodology  3 

4. .......................................................................................... Participants  3 

5. ................................................................................................ Location 4 

6. ...................................................................................................... Data 4  

7. ................................................................................................ Analysis  5 

8. .................................................................................................. Results  5  

8.1. ................................................................................. Participants in the research 5 

8.2.“It wasn’t the place I dreamed of going” - Perspectives of those who did not complete the 

intervention programme.. ...................................................................................... 5 

8.3. ................................ Focus Group Results with TRYangle Programme completers 7 

8.3.1. ....................................................................................................... Acceptability 7  

8.3.2. .................................. What participants liked and disliked about the programme 7 

8.3.3. ....................................................................................................... Staff support 9  

8.3.4. .................................................................................................. Group approach  10 

8.3.5. ............................................................................................................. Role play 11 

8.3.6. .................................................................................... Perpetrator versus victim  13 

    8.4. ................................................................... Experience of the programme  14 
8.4.1. Coercion. “I wasn't making the decision, I was sort of told this is what I had to     do because I was 

kicked out of my home and if I wanted to go back, I had to do this course” .... 14  

8.4.2. Apprehension, “I didn't know what to expect”  ................................................. 15  

8.4.3. Realisation “…there’s nothing to [be] scared about”  ........................................ 16  

8.4.4. Active engagement. “We’re not going to change you, we’re going to show you the things, you're going 

to change” ........................................................................................................... 17 

                    8.5. ...... Techniques learned to reduce violence escalation and perpetration  17 
                    8.6. ........................................................................................ Behaviour change  18 

8.6.1. Couple 1. Joe and Kelly  ....................................................................................... 18  

8.6.2. Couple 2. Isabelle and John  ................................................................................ 19  

8.6.3. Couple 3. Lucas and Carla  ................................................................................... 19  

8.6.4. Individuals whose partner did not attend or complete the programme Active engagement.  20 

Page 48



 

  

23

9. ................................................................................... Conclusions  21 

10. ....................................................................................................... References  21 
 

 

 

Page 49



 

  

24

 
“It physically moved me, I actually put myself in my child’s shoes and I sat there 
crying”: A qualitative study of the experiences of perpetrators and victims of 
Intimate Partner Violence participating in the Bromley TRYangle Programme.  
 

1. Introduction 

The research was conducted by the Centre for Applied Social Research at the University of Greenwich and funded 

by the internal University of Greenwich Alumni funds. Ethical approval was granted by the University of Greenwich 

Ethics Committee.   

 

This report presents the findings from two focus groups and three individual interviews conducted between the 

19
th

 and 25
th

 July 2012.  Focus groups consisted of 1) male perpetrators of intimate partner violence (IPV) and 2) 

their female (ex)partners, who had attended the Bromley TRYangle IPV Intervention Programme. The aim of the 

focus groups was to examine participants’ acceptability and experience of attending the TRYangle programme, 

and the impact that participating had had on their relationship. 

 

In addition, individual interviews were held with two perpetrators and one victim who were assessed as eligible or 

began the TRYangle Programme but did not attend or complete it. 

 

2. The Intervention.  

Bromley Council piloted a 12-week intervention (TRYangle) to reduce IPV among male perpetrators and their 

intimate female partners.  Perpetrators were mostly referred from social services but could also self-refer.  Both 

male perpetrators and their female partners separately completed a 12-week same sex group intervention (2 

hours session per week), with further opportunity to attend a maximum of 20 individual counselling sessions.  

 

3. Methodology  

Focus groups were held to correspond with the final session of the 12 week intervention (July 2012) to maximise 

the participant’s recollection of experience and participation in the research.  

 

As the number of perpetrators and victims that had dropped out of the programme was too small for additional 

focus groups, individual interviews were undertaken using the same topic guide as the focus groups.   

 

4. Participants 

Participants were assessed by the facilitators of the TRYangle programme.  At entry to the TRYangle programme, 

participants were asked to give their consent to participate in the evaluation. 

 

Participants were informed by researchers that their participation in the evaluation would not affect their 

participation in the programme. They were informed that the researcher would have to inform TRYangle staff if 

any participant disclosed intent to harm themself or another person.  An overview of the evaluation process and 

aims of the focus groups/interviews were discussed with participants before proceeding with the research. Issues 

of anonymity and confidentiality were discussed. There were opportunities to answer questions about the study 

before written consent was given. The data were audio-recorded and transcribed.  

 

Page 50



 

  

25

Both focus groups and two face to face interviews were facilitated by two female researchers, and one telephone 

interview was conducted by one female researcher. Participants attending in person received a light meal and £20 

in vouchers for their time. 

 

5. Location 

Focus groups and interviews were conducted at the TRYangle Programme venues in Bromley (Perpetrators) and 

Orpington (Victims). Crèche facilities were made available at the Bromley location for the female participants to 

attend the focus group.  

 

6. Data  

A topic guide consisting of 11 questions was developed following discussion with representatives from TRYangle, 

Bromley Council and the research team. The topic guide allowed a natural balance of discussion to ensure the 

aims of the evaluation were met, and to facilitate debate between participants in the focus group. The topic guide 

for those who had completed the Programme asked: 

 

• Why did you decide to go to the TRYangle programme? 

• What did you expect from the programme? 

• What did you like/dislike about the programme? 

• What did you think was most/least useful about the programme? 

• How do you think it could be improved? 

• Is there anything you would like to be included on the programme that was not included? 

• What do you think about the involvement of partners in the treatment? 

• Why did you not come to all the sessions? (for those who did not always attend) 

• What have you learned from attending the programme? 

• Do you think you will change/have changed your behaviour as a result of attending? 

• Would you recommend others in your situation to attend the TRYangle programme? Why/why not?  

The topic guide for those who did not attend or dropped out of the programme asked: 
• Was the programme explained to you before assessment? 

• Why did you decide not to attend/continue with the TRYangle programme? 

• What did you expect from the programme? 

• What did you like/dislike about the programme? 

• How do you think it could be improved? 

 

7. Analysis  

The five phases of the framework approach were used to organise and analyse the qualitative data: 1) 

familiarisation 2) identifying a thematic framework 3) indexing 4) charting and 5) mapping and interpretation 

(Pope et al., 2000). 

 

8. Results  

Two focus groups of programme completers each lasting an hour. The first group consisted of four females 

classified by the project as victims of IPV. The second group classified as perpetrators of IPV consisted of four 

males. While several attempts were made to individually interview six perpetrators and six victims who did not 

attend or dropped out of treatment, only two interviews with perpetrators and one interview with a victim were 

Page 51



 

  

26

completed. 

 

Whilst participants were not asked to divulge the name of their partner, they were asked if their partner was 

attending the programme.  Several participants disclosed their partner’s name during the research which allowed 

the analysis to consider the experience for couples and the impact that attending the programme had had on their 

relationship.. Pseudonyms have been used to retain anonymity. The term ‘partner’ has been used within this 

report to represent both married and cohabitating couples.     

 

8.1. Participants in the research 

Eleven people participated in the evaluation (6 men, 5 women). Four couples and three participants who attended 

without their partner or were separated from their partner. English was not the first spoken language of all 

participants. Of the 11 participants, 8 (4 male, 4 female) completed the 12 week intervention programme, the 

other 3 participants started but did not complete the programme 

 

The results are presented firstly from the interviews with those who did not complete the TRYangle programme, 

and then the results from the focus groups of programme completers are presented.  

 

8.2. “It wasn’t the place I dreamed of going” - Perspectives of those who did not complete the intervention 

programme. 

 

Hannah, Micky and Steven initially engaged with the TRYangle programme, though disengaged early into the 

scheduled 12 week sessions. Hannah only attended the first session, Steven attended four sessions and Micky 

remembered attending around four or five sessions. All three individuals suggested external reasons why they 

were no longer able to attend including duration of the programme and distance from home (Hannah); and 

additional problems in their lives that prevented them from attending; such as inpatient substance abuse 

detoxification (Steven) and a criminal justice evening curfew (Micky).  Table 1 summarises the experiences of those 

who dropped out of treatment in greater detail. 

Table 1.  Experience of participants who dropped out of the TRYangle Programme 

 

Page 52



 

  

27

 

Hannah  Steven  Micky 

Initial engagement:   Initial engagement:  Initial engagement: 

Although, referred through 
social services, Hannah had 
asked for herself and her 
partner as a couple to attend a 
programme which could help 
with anger management. 
 
Her partner did not engage with 
the programme, although he did 
go for the initial assessment.  

Social services referral but later 
spoke of a court order.  
 
Access to children was a 
motivation to joining the 
intervention. “I need to do this to 
see my kids” and ex-partner.  
 
He had no expectations, knew the 
programme was group based but 
not that there was counselling, he 
was interested in pursuing 
counselling. 

Social services referral  “social 
services stepped in and they said 
that I needed to try and like just see, 
see what it was like for my girlfriend 
from her point of view” 
 
“I didn't think I was going to enjoy it, 

I thought it would be someone else 
going to be nagging at me down the 
phone telling me I’m wrong by this 
and I’m doing this and that wrong 
but going and being there and 
talking to other people that’s been 
through it� it does help” 

Experience of intervention:   Experience of intervention:  Experience of intervention: 

Limited information can be 
gained from Hannah’s 
experience of the intervention 
as she only attended the first 
session.  

As a result of attending the 4 
sessions he felt he had “already 
changed” and “every time I walked 
out I felt a bit better about myself”  
Steven thought the support from 
the other men was really useful, 
and that they could discuss issues 
openly. But was shocked by some 
of the situations some of the men 
discussed. 
 
The role play and brainstorming 
diagram was really helpful it 
“showed reasons why people act 
in a particular way” – this has 
helped him change his behaviour, 
“encourages thought before 
acting...think before speaking” and 
he has put this into practice, he 
said he reacts differently than 
before.  

“I regret missing it because I enjoyed 
it, like hearing other people’s 
problems and other people going 
through the same thing as I do, I 
always thought I was on my own, 
you know what I mean, like no-one 
else understood me” 
Micky was very positive about the 
intervention, seeing it as a place he 
could speak openly in a supportive 
atmosphere. Peer support was 
highly praised, so too was staff 
support. 
 

“my partner was attending the other 

TRYangle project with his (male 
peer’s) partner and just to be able to 
talk to each other on a level and 
understand what each other’s going 
through and stuff, like it helps, it 
does help so ..” 
 

 Role play was effective. 
Reason dropped out:  Reason dropped out:  Reason dropped out: 

The perception that the course 
would last “six months” was an 
issue, with her “daughter being 
too small�and it was very far 
as well.” 
The intervention was too far 
from where Hannah lived, she 
needed to travel on a bus and 
train which she considered was 
difficult to do with a new-born 
child.  

“I went into hospital [detoxification] 
so I couldn’t go to the course any 
more... this was the only reason I 
didn’t finish the course”.  
 
He had not attended any other 
programme before TRYangle, but 
now attends a drug/alcohol group. 
He also believed substance abuse 
(drugs & alcohol) had a major role 
in his behaviour. 

“[I’m] on a four month curfew 
[tag]�so I haven't been able to 
attend about five or six programmes 
but I’m hoping to, once it’s off, to go 
again ‘cause it is helpful.”   
 
The tag and 7pm curfew prevented 
Micky from attending the 
programme.   
 
He would like to complete the course 
once his tag is removed. 

Points to note: 

• Was open to the intervention 

• Partner did not engage 

• Inconvenient location 

• Programme duration deemed 

too long 
 

 Points to note: 

• Positive experience of 

intervention 

• Liked peer support, role play 

and brainstorming 

• Acknowledgement of complex 

lives  

 Points to note: 

• Positive experience of intervention 

• Liked role play, peer and staff 

support  

• Consideration of routes back into 

programme   

Page 53



 

  

28

8.3. Focus Group Results with TRYangle Programme completers 

The aim of the focus groups was to describe participants’ acceptability and experience of attending the TRYangle 

Programme, and the impact it had on their intimate relationships to date.  

 

8.3.1. Acceptability 

Overall, the TRYangle Programme was acceptable to those who attended and completed the Programme. This 

acceptability was expressed equally between perpetrators and victims, although there were a number of ways 

each group believed the programme could be improved.  

 

Participants thought the topics addressed were very relevant to their own experiences and that sessions were 

facilitated in a non-judgemental way. Both the perpetrator and victim groups discussed being able to ‘relate’ to 

the programme.  

 

“I think it helped that everything that was covered, in one way or another all affected us. [some agree]  There 

wasn't nothing that didn't affect us in any way at all, whether it be about the children or the partner or us 

(victims), it all, you know, made sense and we could relate to it, which I think that was the most beneficial.” (Kelly) 

 

8.3.2. What participants liked and disliked about the programme 

The broad consensus among the male and female participants was that they enjoyed attending the TRYangle 

Programme, “it’s not a chore” (Kelly), and all participants would recommend it to others in their situation and 

indeed, many already had.   

 

When asked how the TRYangle programme could be improved, the general consensus was that the programme 

was excellent and that no changes were required.  However, some participants were aware that it was originally a 

24 week programme that had been revised into a 12 week schedule and felt that potentially it may have been 

better to run the programme over the 24 week duration: 

 

“I think they was trying to pack so much in, into one session, it was like only a one or two hour session, they were trying to get 

so much in in one session... I reckon it can benefit from another couple more weeks sessions I reckon, 100%...” (John) 

 

“I’m aware of the course is a 24 week course, fitted into 12 weeks and I think that’s the trouble, there’s a lot – and you can’t 

quite go…, you can’t go deep individually with, with individual people... there are underlying issues that I think if someone can 

go deeper with that person, like with all four of our guys, they might get a bit further”  (Isabelle) 

 

Females highlighted their interest in couples counselling in addition to what is already offered by TRYangle.  

Although men also raised the possibility of working in couples, for them this need was not as evident as it was for 

women: 

 

“I would like John’s [mentor] to work with him and I together, I’d like something a bit more together with him and I from 

TRYangle, I feel like we've not, even though we’re on the course together, I don’t feel like it’s done that to us, I don’t feel like 

it’s brought us together, I don't feel like it’s helped properly to have an understanding of each other.  I don't know how you feel 

...? (Isabelle) I agree, yeah (Josie) Yeah, you probably understanding more.  I would have liked something like Isabelle said, 

something like maybe one week with me and Joe together, you know because what we, sometimes I would like him to hear 

Page 54



 

  

29

what I’m saying, what he’s doing wrong, you know, so he knows that it’s what he’s doing” (Kelly)   

 

Other ways of improving the programme highlighted by men were the inclusion of the teaching life skills (money 

management, cooking lessons etc).  However, there were mixed feelings about this in the perpetrator group as 

described in the extract below:   

 

“Just life skills to help people, as I say that’s male and female, we’re generally rubbish at clearing up and washing up and all 

the rest of it but a bit of direction and a bit of help would be ...(John) That should come from the parents I think (Sam) Well you 

say that but then I lost my dad when I was 15 so a father figure, I didn't have one, so I’ve had to learn from scratch so I think a 

life skill course (John) More general than relationships and communication, as you're saying money management and cooking 

... (Facilitator) Yeah, the whole shebang, it needs to be there, I think otherwise the emphasis is either left on one person or the 

other (John) So you see that more in relation to arguments or ..? (Facilitator) Yeah, well all generally me and my other half 

argue about is money…” (John) 

 

It is clear that John believes if life skills and money management were addressed, then there would be a potential 

reduction in disagreement between himself and his partner which would in turn reduce the escalation from 

arguments into violence perpetration. This emphasises the complexity surrounding IPV and the difficulties in 

addressing ‘individual’ needs within a group setting. 

 

In summary, whilst in general all programme completers were highly complementary about the relevance and 

nature, the size and accessibility of both the programme and staff, there were suggestions on how to improve the 

programme which included greater understanding of both male and female roles in IPV, couples counselling, and 

longer duration of the programme.   

 

The main areas raised are described in more detail below: staff support, group approach, role play and perpetrator 

versus victim. 

 

8.3.3. Staff support 

Participants spoke highly of the staff and the importance of the support they had received from staff, this was 

particularly evident among the perpetrators’ group. 

 

“…the people that do this, they’ve been really nice and it’s nice to have two kinds of people as well, you've got Lyla who’s one 

particular kind of person and Chris is a big guy, skinhead, you think he looks like a nutter but he’s not at all, it’s just ... they’ve 

been open and honest to us and vice versa [They’re] just so easy to talk to, you know, you can just comment and feel like you 

can speak about anything, you know what I mean? That’s how they make you feel, they make you feel so relaxed and ... 

(John) So you said they’re non-judgemental, you like the tools that they’ve given you ... (Facilitator) The role plays are great 

(John) The job they do is just brilliant (Joe) It is good (John) For them to come in here and sit down with a bunch of men 

knowing that some of us that’s here have all hit women, so for them to come and do that... (Joe) they don't judge us at all 

(John) Yeah” (Joe)  

 

Perpetrators considered that having a male and female programme facilitator was effective. So too was splitting 

the groups by gender, and both victims and perpetrators highlighted the benefits of having the perpetrator and 

victim group sessions on the same day as this facilitated discussion of the sessions in the home.  Women attended 

a daytime session, and their male partners attended a corresponding session that same evening. This was 

considered beneficial as it allowed women to prepare their partners for the evening session, for the couple to 

Page 55



 

  

30

discuss what the session had covered together, and on occasions for staff to address issues the women had 

identified during their session.   

 

“What we’d done in the morning, the answers we give, she kind of used against the boys ‘cause she knew which husband 

belonged to who so she knew what I’d said, what was bothering me kind of ...” (Isabelle) “We could say what we think it 

should be covered ...” (Kelly) “And she kind of covered it with that man, do you know?  I thought that was good, so then she 

wasn't directly saying, “your wife said this, this morning”  (Isabelle)  

 

“we talk about it as most of us do but we agree and we listen to each other, say “it helped us in this way” and we talk, yeah 

it’s good to actually go “oh we covered this today and they covered that” and we discuss it,”(Carla)  

 

Whilst the female group indicated a level of control in the direction of sessions , several males commented that 

the programme placed too much onus on the males as being responsible for the IPV, and they would have liked 

the women’s group to learn more about their perspective and the female role in the build-up to any 

confrontation as John describes:  

 

 “It’s not a negative response, where the men are made to feel on this course as though we were the guilty parties” That’s 

what you were expecting or that’s what’s happened? (Facilitator) That’s what’s happened.  I was kind of expecting that and 

kind of not, I thought they might kind of see both sides of the story but as this has gone on, I feel that hasn't happened, I feel 

as though the impression you've got of the men is “you're the people that caused what happened to your partner”, there is 

two sides to a story and same as I hear obviously what my partner comes home and tells me, she comes home kind of gloating 

some days and bigging herself up where I don't feel enough emphasis has been put on the women to maybe have a look at 

themselves as well as us because we’re really having to look at ourselves and see where we’ve gone wrong and how to correct 

that. (John) So what do you think is needed then to make that happen? (Facilitator) I think it’s getting the women to see how 

men feel from, we’ve been put in loads of scenarios  of how a woman feels and I just feel you should do exactly the same 

course for women as men because in my relationship, my partner was just as violent to me as I was to her, I’m not saying it’s 

right but the feeling I’ve got out of it is that she hasn't really been told that, she’s not really feeling how I feel” (John)  

 

8.3.4. Group approach 

Everyone commented on the support they received from the other group members in the programme.   

 

“The thing that I’ve enjoyed most is meeting these three ladies, the having, having that one thing in common that 

we’ve all gone through and it’s been for me advice every Thursday, I look forward to coming…” (Isabelle) 

 

“we were quite a small session, really only three of us for the whole lot, so we become really close and bonded and 

we’ve opened up to each other really nice, so we’re all glad we’ve come here” (John)  

 

Using the group approach to discuss IPV was well received.  Participants discussed forming close bonds with other 

group members with whom they felt they had a connection as they all had “that one thing in common” (Isabelle).      

 

The size of the group was discussed in both focus groups.  All participants agreed that having small single sexed 

groups created a greater connection between participants, better group dynamics, and created a safe 

environment for them to discuss their feelings without being curtailed by time constraints or being fearful of 

opening up in front of participants of the opposite sex. 

 

Page 56



 

  

31

“I think the friendship that we’ve all built has helped, has helped the course, I think if we’d all kept to ourselves and not spoke, 

you know, they wouldn't have shared as many experiences and you know, we’ve helped each other solve problems, you know, 

just advice and I think personally a small group, I don't know whether I’d have felt with a big group of 20 people.” (John)  

 

“it was very small, you know, it was very easy to communicate and it was a very warm atmosphere and I found that” (Lucas)   

 

“this one was really good and the small groups, because I’m going to alcohol service in Croydon, I really like it too but it’s a 

bigger group so you don’t get to say as much as we want to and we just sit there and listen and it’s about 20 women so it’s 

actually just say “I’m this and that” but here [in TRYangle  I’m] actually saying a little bit more about myself, I know they 

understand me.”(Carla)     

 

“..,because it’s a small group, we can actually say things about our life,…we didn't actually just work on the programme, we 

could say “actually this happened to me” and we could all relate to that” (Kelly) 

 

Whilst some participants in both groups stated they would be happy with mixed groups (perpetrators/victims) 

there was uncertainty about how the group dynamics would work in mixed sex groups.  Some stressed they 

would not have felt comfortable discussing personal accounts of IPV within a mixed sex group.  

 

The female group showed resistance to mixed groups also on the grounds that they would not feel comfortable 

discussing personal issues with the opposite sex regardless of their role in violence:  

 

“the fact that it’s all women [in the group],, if the male was the victim, I don't think any of us would have been able to open 

up as much ...”(Isabelle) If it was a mixed gender group? (Facilitator)  “Yeah, not because our experiences would be different 

but just maybe because of you know, he was, he is the opposite sex and it’s, sometimes you can feel ...(Isabelle) Like we’ve got 

our problems with the opposite sex ...” (Kelly) “Yeah, you can feel maybe intimidated or just upset by it,” (Josie) 

 

While men did not confirm this, several females highlighted their partner “wasn't happy because he said there 

were two new men coming in the middle of the session and he didn't like it, he found it very intimidating, anyway 

he didn't like it at all.” (Carla) “My husband said about that, some new ones started but they started half way 

through the course which makes it unfair for the other boys then, the men that have done it from Day One, for 

someone to come in half way through and complete it ...” (Kelly) “It doesn't make sense does it?”(Isabella). 

However, Sam (who joined several sessions into the group) describes “a misunderstanding basically when I was 

supposed to start and that made me a bit more nervous… When I first came and they [other men] were very 

relaxed and talk about their problems, I don't know, I just felt that welcome from the first session straightaway”.  

 

8.3.5. Role play 

Role-play was used to demonstrate different approaches and reactions to confrontations. While some 

participants found role play difficult, it resulted in a strong emotional response from both the male and female 

groups (though mainly from the male group), especially in relation to how their partner (both male and female) 

and children experienced physical and verbal confrontations:  

“the first time I was in here I cried , I was sat down like my little girls and they were standing up and they were 
shouting and it physically moved me, I actually put myself in my child’s shoes and I sat there crying, it made me 
look at how when I bark at them so it’s ...even talking about it now I get sort of goose bumps because it really did 
move me �it really sort of hit home, yeah it did.” (John) “You see yourself in that role play ...” (Lucas) “And other 
people.” (John)  “�arguing in the sitting room with your wife and your kids aren’t in the room, they sleeping, you 
think they sleep, I never check�That loud voice, it just�” (Lucas)   Okay, so it’s been quite emotional ... 

Page 57



 

  

32

(Facilitator) “Very emotional.” (Lucas)   “A lot of crying.”  (John)  
 
“What done it for me, what you said as well, when we saw what our kids were seeing innit, basically, all that 
shouting and the aggressiveness, do you know what I mean and you look at it from your kid’s point of view ...” 
(Sam) “Life changing innit?” (Joe) “Scary innit?  �that’s how it affects you�, it does something to you inside, 
basically because what, because me, I’ve never physically hit my ex-partner but it’s, it’s been so many rows I’ve 
been responsible for, you could say mentally putting her down and etc, vice versa, that’s how it was then, my 
argument was well it’s not been physical so it’s not that serious but ever since I’ve been doing this course, I can 
see that it’s just as much as hitting her, it’s just as much as physical fighting in our kids’ eyes, do you know what I 
mean?” (Sam)    “It’s worse than hitting someone innit?” (Joe) “yeah�you don’t realise that at the time.” (Sam) 
“they showed me how hard it must be for the kids.” (Joe) 
“it [role-play] just opened my eyes to what my children were actually seeing and hearing, not just the seeing part of 
it, what they were hearing and what they were seeing after, like even weeks after and ... yeah, it has, it’s opened 
and it made my husband like that, when he did it at his session, he come home and couldn't talk so ... and he’s 
normally mouthy and always talking but he didn't, you know, he come home and he didn't  say a word so I knew 
because we was told from the morning that the men were doing it in the evening so I was prepared, because my 
eldest son blames my husband for being in care so when he heard and he did the children part, it really emotionally 
affected him because now he knows why my son says them things to him,” (Kelly) 
I didn't know that’s what we were going to cover about the emotional effects on children, us, how it affects them as 
well, the other half, the partner. (Carla)  
 

The impact of their verbal and physical conflict on their children was the most powerful message 
for many participants.  Whilst sessions were not always comfortable for participants, for 
example the role play, they were seen after the event to be very effective.  Both perpetrators 
and victims commented on the benefit of this approach.   Perpetrators were very clear that the 
role play aspect of the programme had been particularly beneficial in helping them to see 
“yourself basically but from someone else’s point of view” (John), and that it gave them a way to 
stand outside their situation and see from their partner’s perspective:  
 
“The role play, just opens your eyes you know, seeing is believing ...See where you went wrongG” (Joe) 
 
 “the best part of it I think, like the role play and when they’re actually showing the people the way it can be...they 
get it down to a tee and it makes you think” (Sam) 
 

Victims also described the benefits and acceptance of the role play exercises, although one 
participant expressed not enjoying acting out scenes in the group:  
 
“�I don't like role play; I don't like being centre of attention... (Josie) when we have to be involved, yeah (Kelly) It’s 
not a huge amount of pressure but because you're put on the spot and everyone’s looking at you and then you’re 
like ... is what I’m saying right, is it wrong, does it even have anything to do with what we’re talking about?  And 
then the other person answers you and then you think “oh my gosh, what have I got to say?” and then you're just 
like worried and then you forget and it’s, I just hate role play all together, or any kind of like ... speaking in front of a 
group, I mean this isn't too bad but just anything, you know, I have to quickly think of that’s out of my comfort zone, 
it’s just like “no” ...! (Josie) but after you did it, did it benefit you in any way? Yeah, I think it helped, I do think it 
helped but just while I was doing it, it was just like “oh my gosh, I can’t do this, this is horrible!” but no I think it did 
help in a good way (Josie) Can you think of a different way that they could have done those sessions without using 
role play? I don't think we would have understood the situation if we hadn't had done it perhaps because it was the 
answers we gave ... (Kelly) that was the ... (Carla)  that was the things that they wanted us to see?  Does that 
make sense? (Kelly) Yeah  [some agree] whereas ... if they’d (staff) have done the role play then we wouldn't have 
really seen how it was, you know, how much effect it would have had, or the, what’s the word, or the outcome or 
just how it made us feel, you know?” (Isabelle) 

8.3.6. Perpetrator versus victim 

The victims’ group was also aware that some of them had also been violent towards their partners, at times in 

self-defence, but at others the violence was reciprocal:  

 

Page 58



 

  

33

“ [it] should be acknowledged ,that you know the line between we can both be perpetrators and it can be a woman and you 

know, and I didn't know how to feel because I was asked these questions, did he, “does he hit you?” and “does he ..?”, but we 

do it, both of us we done it and I was the one who was removed so it’s kind of ... but I did, you know, a lot of things applied to 

me and I, made me understand more so ... So do you think you need a different course? (Facilitator)  No I’m not sure ... Or to 

do both courses or...? (Facilitator) No, I think yeah, ‘cause you're looking at it from both sides ‘cause yeah, that, I don't think 

there are many women like me!  Or maybe, I don't know! (Carla) Don’t worry, don’t worry (Kelly)  We’re very equal in our 

relationship so I don't know, maybe it’s me” (Carla)   “Me and John used to like, have physical arguments before you know, we 

broke up for a while, before we broke up, I was physical, I think more in defence to myself to him but I was more physical that 

time round than what I was this time (Isabelle)” 

 

While John’s partner, Isabelle, acknowledges her role in previous violence, it appears she does so to support 

Carla’s disclosure. Carla, however, was removed from her home, her husband was awarded custody of the 

children, and Carla admitted to being physically violent towards her husband, though both agree that the violence 

was reciprocal. Carla attended the victims’ group and her partner, Lucas, attended the perpetrators’ group as 

groups were gender specific. Whilst they were eventually both accepting of being allocated to these groups, 

group dynamics could have been affected by the involvement of a perpetrator in a victims’ group and vice versa. 

There is a clear need to address perpetration for women. Overall, the perpetrator group stated they  would be 

happy for mixed groups based on participants’ role in violence rather than their gender, however, this was not 

the case for the one individual (Lucas) who was in this situation.   

 

“How about you, you were just saying there that if there was a female who was a perpetrator, should she come to this group? 

(Facilitator) She (Carla) should be, perpetrators should be put together because this guy (referring to Lucas), he’s sitting here 

with men who’s done things and whatever and like his situation’s completely different, it should be the other way round, do 

you know what I mean? (John) How do you think it would work if it was a mixed gender group? (Facilitator)  It would be okay, 

man.  Treat each other with respect ... (Joe) How would you have felt if you were in a group that was predominantly women? 

(Facilitator)   No, I wouldn't be comfortable in there! (Lucas) there’s one big thing we’ve noticed is culture [including the role 

of women] playing a big problem in this whole scenario and that is a big factor …his woman’s trying to be like a man so to 

him, he’s respecting her but he lives in a Western society now, you know and we’ve all noticed that… relationships are going 

on in the UK where there’s clashing and fighting because of clashing different nationalities (John) ... So how do you feel being 

in the UK now with a partner who’s from a different culture to you? (Facilitator)  I don't know, it’s bit confusing, I’m still 

learning, I still try to find out a way, it’s really hard, different culture, different religion, different lifestyle, even different food 

(Lucas) … John, he was saying earlier about that course where they teach you an understanding of different cultures and 

things like that, that’s what he needs innit?”  (Sam) 

 

8.4. Experience of the programme 

Focus group participants described their journeys both as an individual and as a group. It was clear through the 

participants’ narrative that there was a staged attitudinal change, or journey through the programme.   

 

As a group the female participants’ journey began without any expectations, which was shortly followed by a 

willingness to discuss sensitive issues within the group as trust began to grow. As the programme progressed, a 

greater sense of support grew, as did their expectations. Interestingly the female group discussed frequently their 

experience of the programme through the perspective of the impact of the programme on their partner; compared 

to the male group who spoke mainly of their own behavioural change.  

 

Male participants experienced a change from ‘coercion’ to ‘apprehension to attend’ to ‘acceptance’ to ‘active 

Page 59



 

  

34

engagement’ in the Programme.  This pathway begins from the position of coercion and fear of the consequences 

of not being seen to engage with the programme. Whilst these consequences are never devoid from thought 

throughout the whole process, the narratives quite quickly change from not only being seen to engage, to feeling 

comfortable engaging within the context of the session and group dynamics. This stage is concluded by an active, 

positive engagement to the point where the participant looks forward to attending a session.  

 

Although the male and female groups followed slightly different pathways they share a number of similar 

experiences, therefore where relevant we will discuss participants´ experience of the programme collectively in the 

following sections, however the impact and behavioural change will addressed later.  

 

8.4.1. Coercion. “I wasn't making the decision, I was sort of told this is what I had to do because I was kicked out of 

my home and if I wanted to go back, I had to do this course” (John) 

It was clear from the narratives that participants perceived Social Service involvement in their lives had resulted in 

little alternative but to attend the programme, for fear of the consequences of not doing so.  This coercion was at 

times also met with denial, “social services said I had to come [but] I’m not a violent person, I don't need it” (Sam). 

The majority of men had been removed from the family home as a result of their perpetration of IPV (one couple 

had the roles reversed where the women was the perpetrator and was removed from the family home), and as a 

result had limited, supervised, or no access to their children prior to engagement with TRYangle.  Therefore, for 

many, programme attendance was viewed as a route back into the family unit or as a way to regain custody or 

parental rights. The following extract is from the victims’ focus group discussing the reasons they entered the 

TRYangle programme:   

 

“[We] Was just told he had to go, he wouldn’t ask, he had to go because my situation, my children are in care because my 

husband with his domestic violence and like with the violence and that, he would, my children were put in care over it.  

Without him doing this course, we wouldn't get our kids back so this was part of what he had to do, you know?  But he’s 

enjoyed it so... (Kelly) We’ve both been told to, that we have to do this [attend TRYangle], we have to, you know they can’t 

force us, but... (Carla) If you hadn't have gone on the course, what would the consequences be? (Facilitator) It would have 

been bad for me (Kelly) If I would have gone back, we would go to court and they would, the other people would decide 

what’s happening with ... (Carla) With the children ...(Josie) Yeah with the children because if I would have moved back, they 

could be removed and put in a foster care for some time and I don’t even want that to happen so ... obviously, but we are 

both very happy that we’ve started, my husband can’t praise you know enough, the programme and ... yeah, really good” 

(Carla) 

 

Both Kelly and Carla suggest that whilst they were aware programme attendance was voluntary, “they can’t force 

us”, the repercussions of not attending were so great that they or their partner really had no choice. It was 

apparent that perpetrators had to be ‘seen’ to engage with the TRYangle Programme to “show” Social Services or 

their partner that they were motivated to change, but many described feeling coerced to engage or face the 

consequences “to get social services out of our lives” (Sam): 

 

“I wasn't making the decision, I was sort of told this is what I had to do because I was kicked out of my home and if I wanted 

to go back, I had to do this course.” (John) 

 

“ Yeah and they put the pressure on me, you know, I just feel like that I didn't have any choice... Yeah, but I was still like that, 

you know, like, I think myself, like a dog, put a chain on my neck and drag me here” (Lucas) [Lucas was identified as a victim of 

IPV but attended the gender specific male perpetrators’ group. However, he and his partner have indicated a dual role in IPV 

Page 60



 

  

35

perpetration].   

 

There was a belief that nonattendance signified a lack of willingness to address IPV to Social Services, that could 

ultimately result in one or both parents losing custody of their children. Children were therefore, a strong 

motivator to attend the programme.   At inception of the programme, attendance did not mean active 

engagement but rather a sense of “taking it on the chin...and do(ing) as you are told”. (John)   

 

8.4.2. Apprehension, “I didn't know what to expect” (Isabelle) 

Participants stressed they were apprehensive about attending the programme as they were uncertain what to 

expect. Male participants described a fear of the stigma surrounding perpetration of IPV, including expecting to 

be being labelled as perpetrators and to be judged negatively about their behaviour.  These beliefs indicate that 

men were aware that their behaviour was not socially acceptable. This was not only in relation to the programme 

content, but also in relation to the perception that they may be different to other perpetrators. 

 

“I expected to see skinhead nutters who beat their missus to a pulp and I’m not like that and I was, and that’s why 

I was a bit hesitant to come, I phoned  Lyla and said “is it going to be full of these kind of people ‘cause I’m not like 

this”, I’m not a bully and I was kind of feeling a little bit intimidated by the unknown” (John).  

 

“I was thinking about “what they going to say to me, what are going to ask me?” (Lucas)  

 

Lucas and John both show apprehension and concern of what to expect on the programme, though for different 

reasons. Whereas, female participants on the whole did not show the same level of anxiety about starting the 

programme, but were rather ambivalent. Only one female had “attended a similar course”(Kelly) so knew what to 

expect. Kelly was however, anxious about disclosing her children were in care as she thought “because I’m the 

only one with kids in care, I kind of felt a bit embarrassed about that at first, when I first came.” 

 

8.4.3. Realisation “…there’s nothing to [be] scared about” (Lucas) 

However, this apprehension was soon discarded early in the programme, “When I came here to the group, it was 

first session and second and third one, I found out there’s nothing to scared about” (Lucas)  as staff and other 

participants were “Just so easy to talk to, you know, you can just comment and feel like you can speak about 

anything… that’s how they [staff] make you feel…”(Sam). 

 

This rapid change in belief led to enhanced engagement in the programme that could be attributed to a variety of 

reasons. The TRYangle staff were key to creating a conducive atmosphere of safety and confidentiality, so that the 

victims could voice their opinions, and experiences without fear that what they had said would be fed back to 

their partners.  In addition, perpetrators also felt comfortable discussing their experiences without the fear of 

being judged. In this respect an element of trust needed to be created between the participants and facilitators. 

Staff were viewed as open, trustworthy, and most importantly non-judgemental which, as described in the 

section on staff support, was a highly praised element of the programme. 

 

Moreover, the development of trust and support from peers participating in the groups was crucial to the group 

dynamics, validation and sharing of feelings and experiences led to a positive experience of attending the 

programme.  Such validation from group participants (both male and female) demonstrated they were not alone, 

Page 61



 

  

36

“everyone(s) in the same boat” (Kelly) they were not the only ones that had relationship difficulties which could 

escalate beyond the norm, although potentially in different ways. Both perpetrators’ and victims’ stressed the 

importance of the support from other group members during the programme, and although group members 

were discouraged from forming friendships outside the programme, many reported they had ‘bumped into’ one 

another at Social Service offices and would have welcomed the opportunity to become friends once the group 

ended “we’re kind of confused about what should we be doing because we meet each other at social services, 

that’s not a perfect environment to go to, “oh  how are you, what you doing here?”… but yeah, I’d love to catch 

up.” (Kelly) and, “The only thing that I’m sorry for is that it’s actually going to finish, it’s been great, it really has, 

it’s just a bit gutting it’s near the end” (John). 

 

8.4.4. Active engagement. “We’re not going to change you, we’re going to show you the things, you're going to 

change” (Lucas)  

As a result of the support from staff and group members, participants began to describe actively engaging in the 

programme. Some participants from both groups looked forward to attending the session each week: 

 

“It’s like a meeting place ...” (Joe) “Yeah it is, just like a meeting place, I think we’ll all be a bit lost after this week and don't 

know where to go!” [laughs] (John) 

 

“ meeting these three ladies, the having, having that one thing in common that we’ve all gone through and it’s been for me 

advice every Thursday, I look forward to coming...” (Isabella)  “Yeah, same with me.” (Kelly) “Yeah” (Josie)  

 

Openly discussing issues or situations not only about the programme, but also real life situations that had arisen 

during the week, both positive and negative, were greatly appreciated. Many had not discussed their feelings 

regarding their situation openly before, but felt confident in this environment in doing so, and this also bolstered 

their confidence in both giving and receiving support from the group. This method of learning to change 

behaviour was viewed as useful. 

 

8.5. Techniques learned to reduce violence escalation and perpetration 

Participants believed that by attending the programme they had learned a number of ways to reduce violence 

escalation and perpetration, mainly anger management, more effective communication with their partner and had 

also gained an understanding of IPV.  These were voiced by both perpetrator and victim groups (unless otherwise 

specified) and are described below. 

 

Many highlighted the value of the anger management methods they had been taught during the programme so “it 

(argument) doesn't escalate”(Kelly) into violence including walking away or taking time out: 

 

“They teach methods of how to control yourself and how to calm yourself down and take, you know take time out 

as we call it if you get stressed, have a walk down the road for 10 minutes and come back, there’s different ways of 

dealing with things.” (John) 

 

“Just what they told us innit, just how to deal with it, if you feel it coming, if you feel like you’re going to be stressed, 

just go for a walk or take time out…I think the consequences, knowing what the consequences could be and 

basically that, when you see the role play and everything that they’ve done here, you basically step out of your 

shoes for a few moments and look at yourself, it really scares you, you know what I mean, don’t really want to go 

Page 62



 

  

37

back there” (Sam) 

 

“I know to leave it for a bit, till he’s done a time out or if, you know leave it till the next day and then try and talk 

about it, instead of going straight back at him when he’s in this mood” (Kelly) 

 

Female victims stated the programme had helped them “Learn not to blame ourselves as much” (Josie), however 

some men felt that there was a need to get “the women to see how men feel from, we’ve been put in loads of 

scenarios  of how a woman feels and I just feel you should do exactly the same course for women as men because in 

my relationship, my partner was just as violent to me as I was to her, I’m not saying it’s right but the feeling I’ve got 

out of it is that she hasn't really been told that, she’s not really feeling how I feel ” (John) 

 

Many believed that they had learned to communicate with their partners more effectively as a result of attending 

the course including listening and not jumping to conclusions: 

 

 “we’re just approaching each other a bit more”(Joe) 

 

“Oh it’s better, I ... I listen to her more and try to understand, try to be without problem” (Lucas)  

 

“listening to them without getting angry back” (Kelly) 

 

“it has made me look at myself just a little bit more than maybe I might have done before” (Isabelle)  

 

The programme had provided a greater understanding of the effect of IPV on both partners and their children, “I 

realised as well how my actions affect other people and to take a step back and think about that before you act 

really, that whatever you do, it does affect someone else”  (Sam) 

 

8.6. Behaviour change 

Perpetrators and their victims were asked whether they had changed their behaviour in relation to reducing 

violence. Many male participants believed that what they learned as a result of attending the TRYangle programme 

had enabled them to change their behaviour for the better, and gave examples of using time out and other anger 

management strategies to stop arguments escalating into verbal or physical violence.  Findings are discussed for 

the three couples who completed the programme. 

 

8.6.1. Couple 1. Joe and Kelly 

Joe believed while he and his partner still argued, they both used techniques learned at the programme in an 

attempt to stop the escalation of violence: 

 

“ I think I have [changed], … she’s doing the course as well,…we argue but we haven't rowed, we’ve argued and basically it’s 

like she’ll put the phone down on me or I’ll put the phone down on her, now when we was in a relationship or just before all 

the social and that got involved, if one of us put the phone down on each other, basically she’ll phone me and phone me and 

phone me and we’d just exchange abuse from text messages to each other, …it would just go on all day, but that’s stopped 

basically, I wouldn’t hear from her or she will phone me later or I’ll phone her later and say “do you know what, I think I did 

raise my voice, I apologise for that call because that wasn't helping the matter” and we’ll speak there and then.” (Joe)  And is 

that because you've both been on the course or ...? (Facilitator)  “I think I’ve changed, I think she’s changed as well basically 

Page 63



 

  

38

so I think that’s, even I’ve been surprised, “wow that’s not you”, basically she’s calm.” (Joe)    

 

Whilst Joe’s partner, Kelly, agreed they were both using the time out as a tool to reduce escalation of violence, 

she believed Joe“ could benefit maybe from a few more sessions than the 12 weeks…” even though “…he’s done 

really well,…still maybe a little more…” is needed.    

 

8.6.2. Couple 2. Isabelle and John 

Isabelle also believes John requires further intervention: 

 

“he stays calmer a little bit longer than what he would have done before, he’s got a little bit more understanding 

… but he still minimises what he did and he still points the finger at me and says it’s my fault… at me and says it’s 

my fault, I made him do it so ... yeah, so he’s still got a bit more work and I don't know if the 12 weeks was too 

short for John” (Isabelle) 

 

John to some extent confirms Isabelle’s assertions of blame, although he did believe he had changed: 

 

Yeah, I’m a lot more calmer, I’d like to say my partner is but er, I don't really see what she’s got out the course on 

the women’s side of it ‘cause I don't feel like I’m getting anything back (John) So are you still arguing as much or 

...? (Facilitator) Pretty much and pretty much about the same old things, it’s just I’m not getting it to the stage that 

it used to get to, which was like pushy shoving, proper screaming ...So you still argue but you're not being physical 

…(Facilitator)  Still arguing, yeah, not being physical, no, knowing when to sort of, as you say take time out or ...” 

(John)  

 

John describes how his attendance had helped him re-join his family:  

 

“I’m home now about three/four weeks  So do they come and do an evaluation based on your attendance here or 

...? (Facilitator)  They write a report, TRYangle send it back to the social and depending on how that goes, ‘cause I 

talk to a drug counsellor as well so everyone’s reporting back and yeah, it’s all looking good so I .. So the condition 

was that you went to drug counselling and to TRYangle? (Facilitator) “Yeah” (John).  

 

In addition, he reported levels of overall anger reduction, “I’m not arguing with my social worker, I couldn't stand 

her, I couldn't see …  step in my house, it was hurting me … I’m so angry but not anymore” (John).  

 

8.6.3. Couple 3. Lucas and Carla 

Both parties are consistent in their assertions of change. Both Lucas and Carla see themselves and each other as 

calmer and less volatile:  

 

“Oh it’s better, I ... I listen to her more and try to understand, try to be without problem.” (Lucas) And how is she 

with you, has she changed? (Facilitator) “Yes, yeah, she change a lot.  She’s not getting angry that much” (Lucas). 

So you're not fighting with her? (Facilitator) “No, no, we don't live together at the moment but she come and stay 

sometimes, come and stay over and she come and see kids many time, I can’t wait her to back at home, you 

know” (Lucas)  

 

Page 64



 

  

39

“it really helped him a lot and you’ll probably get his feedback tonight.” (Carla)  

 

Although Lucas and Carla do not currently live together, they speak of greater communication as a result of the 

intervention programme:   

“we talk about it as most of us do but we agree and we listen to each other, say “it helped us in this way” and we 

talk, yeah it’s good to actually go “oh we covered this today and they covered that” and we discuss it” (Carla) 

 

8.6.4. Individuals whose partner did not attend or complete the programme 

While corroboration from partners could not be ascertained for Josie or Sam as their partners did not attend or 

complete the programme, they reported perceived changes in their behaviour.  A major change for Josie was 

separating from her partner (who did not complete the course), saying she “ …prefer(s) him not being there ...[I] 

can have routine with my child, I don't have to explain…I find it easier with him not being there.” (Josie)  

 

The realisation that not all couples should continue in the relationship, is not an easy choice to make or to 

actualise, especially when the couple have children. Sam understands this difficulty, and believes greater 

communication is the key to getting this right:  

 

“I’ve taken on board from the course which really has helped me about how to deal with a lot of situations 

because obviously my ex-partner, she’s going to be in my life, we’ve got two girls together so just to deal with, to 

get social services out of our lives, it’s just going to be me and her and that’s something we’ve got to get right, so 

there’s a lot of things that I’ve learned here that will help me to communicate with her better for everyone’s sake.” 

(Sam)   

 

Female and male participants who remained in intimate relationships with a partner attending the programme, 

indicated greater communication with their partners, including discussion around each session and feeding back 

what they had learned. In the female focus group there was a view that they had changed their behaviour, to 

some extent,  to minimise conflict in certain situations, with one participant saying: “ I’ve learned to wait until the 

situation’s calmed down instead of going straight back in and rowing back with him because that can escalate into 

seriousness, like what it used to, so now I know how to deal with that when he gets into these situations, these 

moods and things what he does, I know to leave it for a bit, till he’s done a time out or if, you know leave it till the 

next day and then try and talk about it, instead of going straight back at him when he’s in this mood, that’s not 

going to get anything sorted, for me it would have been just normally to get hit, you know, that would have been 

the end of it because I’ve gone back in, now I know not to do that and to leave it and it’s worked for us (Kelly).” 

 

One male participant highlighted a number of situations where they had tempered their behaviour, controlling 

anger in situations that would previously have led to confrontation and to violence, including taking time out, not 

blaming and communicating better. 

 

Perpetrators believed they would be able to sustain their new learned behaviours: 

 

“I’m not just going to forget it, do you know what I mean? It’s something that I’m going to keep with me forever 

because I know where I can go with stress and with anger” (John)  

 

Page 65



 

  

40

9. Conclusions 

Both perpetrators and victims attending and completing the Bromley pilot of the TRYangle Programme 

evaluated it highly.  For the overwhelming majority, the motivation for attending and completing the 

programme was their children, rather than their relationship with an intimate partner.  They believed the 

strength of the programme lay in the non-judgemental messages and support from staff, the relevance and 

emotiveness of the sessions, group format and support from group members.  A clear pathway was apparent, 

with most males describing feeling coerced and all participants apprehensive to attend as they did not know 

what to expect from such a programme.  However, as a result of attending, they soon actively engaged in the 

programme and self-reported behaviour change on its completion. Male and female participants believed 

they now possessed the tools to sustain this behaviour. Nevertheless, it is believed by some of the victims 

that not enough progress was achieved by their partners at completion of the programme.    

 

Issues that could be considered for future programmes are the need for couples work and longer programme 

duration. Furthermore, potential participants should receive more detailed information on what to expect 

prior to entering the programme to enhance their understanding of what was involved and enhance 

retention. 

 

 

10. References 

Pope, C., Ziebland, S., Mays, N. Qualitative research in health care. Analysing qualitative data. BMJ 

2000;320:114–6. 

 

Page 66



 

 1

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1 SUMMARY 
 
1.1 This report provides an update in relation to Domestic Abuse  
.  
 
2 RECOMMENDATION 
 

2.1 The Strategic Group is asked to note the information contained within this report and comment 
on the key findings 

 
2.2 The Strategic Group is asked to support continuing provision of services and the development 

of more targeted services based upon further analysis when more data becomes available.  
 

 
3 BACKGROUND INFORMATION 

 
 

3.1  The last Safer Bromley Partnership Performance Management Report revealed an 
18% increase in Common Assault offences which included Domestic Abuse. 

  
3.2  This review investigates the reasons for this increase and identifies particular trends. 

The data range used for the local analysis part of this investigation is from 1st April 
2010 to 31st March 2012 (2 years).  

 
3.3  Data used for this analysis is from the Victims of domestic abuse who attended the 

One Stop Shop in Bromley. 
 

3.4  There were 832 cases referred in the last two years. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Meeting:   Safer Bromley Partnership Strategic Group 
 
Date:    21st March 2013 
 
Subject:   Domestic Violence Statistical Update 2010-2012 
 
Author:  Pratheepan Jeyapragasam, Crime Analyst 
  pratheepan.jeyapragasam@bromley.gov.uk     
 

 

 
Agenda Item 8

Page 67



 

 2

 
  
3.5  Below chart shows Domestic Abuse victims by their age groups 

0%

5%

10%

15%

20%

25%

30%

35%

19-24 25-34 35-44 45-54 55-64 65+

Victims by Age

 
 
3.6  Majority of the victims referred in the last two years were aged between 25 to 44, but 

there was an increase identified in the 19-24 age group (5%) and 25-34 age group 
(3%) in comparison to 2010-2011 and 2011-2012 data. 

 

Referral source

0%

5%

10%

15%

20%

25%

30%

35%

40%

Police BWA Health CAB Social Care Other

 
3.7 As shown above most of the referrals were received from Bromley Police. The number 

of referrals increased from Victim Support Service during year 2011-12.This may be in 
part attributable to a change in the format of the forms and the increase in the options 
available to those completing these forms.  

Page 68



 

 3

Relationship to Perpetrator

0%

5%

10%

15%

20%

25%

30%

35%

40%

E
x-
P
ar
tn
er

H
u
sb
a
nd

P
ar
tn
er

U
n
kn
o
w
n 
/ D
ec
lin
e
d

E
x-
H
us
ba
nd

S
on
/D
au
gh
te
r

W
ife

E
x-
W
ife

O
th
er
 fa
m
ily
 m
em
be
r/
O
th
er
s

 
 
3.8 The chart above shows most of the perpetrators were ex-partners or current 

husbands, but there was a slight increase identified by other family members/Others 
and also 25% of the victims were living with the perpetrators when they were referred 
to the One Stop shop service in year 2011/12. 

 

Time since last abusive incident 

0%

5%

10%

15%

20%

25%

30%

35%

Same day 1-3 days 4-7 days 2-3 wks 1-2 mths 3-6 mths 7+ mths

 
 

3.9 The chart above illustrates the frequency of abusive incidents that occurred within 7 
days.  

Page 69



 

 4

 
 

Number Of children

0%

5%

10%

15%

20%

25%

30%

35%

0 1 2 3 4 5+

 
 
3.10 This analysis demonstrates that 79% of the abuse happened in a household 

where there was at least one child in the family. 
 

by wards

0%

2%

4%

6%

8%

10%

12%

14%

Bi
ck
ley

Bi
gg
in
 H
ill

Br
om
le
y C
om

m
on

Br
om
le
y 
To
wn

Ch
el
sf
ie
ld

C
hi
sle
hu
rs
t

Cl
oc
k 
Ho
us
e

C
op
er
s 
Co
pe

Cr
ay
 V
all
ey
 E
as
t

Cr
ay
 V
all
ey
 W
es
t

Cr
ys
ta
l P
ala
ce

Da
rw
in

Fa
rn
bo
ro
ug
h

Ha
ye
s

Ke
ls
ey

M
ot
tin
gh
am

O
rp
in
gt
on

Pe
ng
e

Pe
t ts
 W
oo
d

Pl
ais
to
w

Sh
or
tla
nd
s

W
es
t W

ick
ha
m

 
 

3.11 This analysis demonstrates that 12% of the victims live in Penge ward. This 
distribution is almost identical in 2010-2011 and 2011-2012. This reflects the 
population density across the borough. 

Page 70



111

Bromley

Borough Commander’s

Newsletter
March 2013

1111111111111111111111111 1111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111 11111111111111111111111111111 1111111111111

TOTAL POLICING

Welcome to March’s newsletter.

It's probably nothing, but...your call could save lives.........

A publicity campaign launched by the Metropolitan Police Service in February is urging Londoners to trust their
instincts to help police in the fight against terrorism and potentially save lives.

Everyone who works, lives and visits the capital has a role to play in helping to counter the terrorist threat which
remains real and serious.

The five-week campaign, "It's probably nothing, but …" encourages anyone who sees or hears something that
they think could terrorist related to call the dedicated Anti-Terrorist Hotline on 0800 789 321.

Protecting Londoners from terrorism is one of the top priorities for the Metropolitan Police Service. The threat,
whether it is from Al-Qaeda inspired groups or individuals, dissident Irish republican groups or other violent
extremists, is still a real and serious one.

You know the area where you live better than anyone else so we ask you to be vigilant, trust your instincts and
tell us about anyone or anything you see which is out of place in your normal day to day lives.
No piece of information is considered too small or insignificant. Our specialist officers would rather take lots of
calls which turn out to have an innocent explanation than miss out on a vital piece of information. All calls are
treated in the strictest confidence and information is thoroughly assessed before - and if - any further action is
taken.

Please help us to create a difficult environment for the terrorist. Your call really could save lives. Terrorists live
among us while they are planning their attacks so we need the help of all our communities to pass on any
suspicions to the Anti Terrorist Hotline on 0800 789 321.

Inside this month’s newsletter you can read about Commendations awarded by MPS Assistant Commissioner
Simon Byrne to local resident Stephen Izegbu, who heroically restrained an armed man running amok in a
church and to our CID Crime Squad, for their skills which resulted in the detection of hundreds of burglary
offences committed across the borough.

Steph Roberts
Borough Commander

Agenda Item 11a

Page 71



22 2

Bromley

Borough Commander’s

Newsletter
March 2013

22222222222222222222 22222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222 222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222 222222222222222222222222222222222222222222222 222222222222222

TOTAL POLICING

Local hero receives commendation

An Orpington man has received a commendation after restraining an armed man running amok in a church.

At the special commendation ceremony at Hendon, Metropolitan Police Service Assistant Commissioner Simon
Byrne commended Stephen Izegbu for 'exemplary public sprit, bravery and determination in the restraint of an
armed man who was causing injury to elderly members of the public’.

Mr Izegbu immediately went to the victim’s aid and confronted the suspect. In an attempt to stop the suspect
inflicting further injury, he wrestled him to the ground, during which he received a blow to the head causing a cut.
Mr Izegbu continued to struggle with the suspect eventually pinning him to the ground. He held onto him until
help came from another member of the public and then the police.

A witness said that Mr Izegbu 'was like superman coming to the rescue'; and one of the victims said he was a
'complete hero'.

The suspect has since been sentenced to an indeterminate period of time in a secure Mental Health facility.

After the sentencing the Judge commended Mr Izegbu for his bravery and it gives me great pleasure that the
Metropolitan Police Service have honoured the bravery of Mr Izegbu, who with great courage and without
hesitation put himself in danger to protect others.

Mr Izegbu had only that day become a British Citizen yet he entered a very violent situation knowing that it was
dangerous and tackled an armed man to the ground, restraining him even after sustaining a head injury. Mr
Izegbu showed no regard for his own safety, putting the lives of others above his own. If it were not for his
selfless actions I am sure there would have been further and more serious injuries.

Last July police responded to a call to St
Barnabas Church in Rushet Road where a man
was smashing the windows of the church. The
man had smashed the church windows, attacked
the Reverend and her family, damaged motor
vehicles and had then forced his way into the
church where he then attacked five elderly people
who were there as part of a choir. Victims and
witnesses stated that the suspect was 'like a man
possessed', and was shouting 'I will kill them all'.

Mr Izegbu lives very close to the church and heard
the commotion. On doing so, he left his house,
still in his pyjamas. On arrival at the church, he
saw the suspect attacking the victims whilst armed
with the stick, hitting one of the elderly women
with it.

Page 72



333

Bromley

Borough Commander’s

Newsletter
March 2013

3333333333333333333333333333 33333333333333333333333333333333333333333333333333333333333333333 33333333333333333333333333333333 333333333333333

TOTAL POLICING

Bromley Police's Crime Squad commended

Bromley Police's CID Crime Squad have received a commendation for their skills which resulted in the detection
of hundreds of burglary offences.

At the special commendation ceremony at Hendon, Metropolitan Police Service Assistant Commissioner Simon
Byrne commended the crime squad for their 'determination, professionalism and outstanding investigation skills
whilst deployed on complex investigations and covert operations’, resulting in 11 custodial sentences and the
detection of hundreds of burglary offences.

The Crime Squad - DI Jerry Troon, DS Stuart Roberts, DC Iain Graves, DC James Stokes, DC Kimberly
Krauhaus and DC Alan Biggs - undertook the investigation of an extensive criminal network of offenders
committing residential burglary offences where high value motor vehicles were often stolen. Stolen vehicles were
then used to commit burglary offences at commercial venues where safes and cigarettes were stolen.

The Crime Squad linked 200 offences committed in a 5 month period across Croydon and Bromley. Each
offence was reinvestigated. Key common features were identified through scrutiny of intelligence, modus
operandi and many hours of CCTV viewing and statement taking. 8 suspects were identified. Parallel pro-active
and re-active investigative strands were undertaken.

All 8 subjects were arrested and charged with conspiracy, with prosecution papers totalling in excess of 1600
statements and all pled guilty of conspiracy to commit burglary. They received a combined total of 25 years
imprisonment.

The Crime Squad also led the investigation into an Organised Criminal Network committing night time residential
burglary offences in Bromley, surrounding Boroughs and counties.

Through comprehensive intelligence gathering and a clever pro-active operation a suspect was identified as a
person of interest and a man-hunt undertaken. The suspect was arrested and charged with conspiracy to
commit burglary.

Further investigation and extensive enquiries identified two co-conspirators who were also arrested and charged.

The crime squad pursued the disruption of the criminal network tenaciously, removing the final piece of the
jigsaw with the arrests of two further suspects during a joint arrest phase with Kent Police.

This operation resulted in the detection of 220 residential Burglary offences in London and Kent. Three of the
suspects have been jailed, two are currently in prison awaiting sentencing.

I am very proud of the achievements of Bromley's CID Crime Squad in dismantling these criminal networks. It is
a privilege to be leading teams such as this serving the communities of Bromley with such determination and
professionalism.

Page 73



44 4

Bromley

Borough Commander’s

Newsletter
March 2013

44444444444444444444 44444444444444444444444444444444444444444444444444444444444 444444444444444444444444444444444444444444444444444444444444444444444444444444444444 444444444444444444444444444444444444444444444 444444444444444

TOTAL POLICING

Seven years for drug offender

Library thief jailed

Burglar sentenced after forensic link

A 28 year old man from Brixton Hill has been jailed after being convicted of
intending to supply drugs in Bromley.

Ismail Attah, age 28, of Helix Road, Brixton Hill, London was found guilty of two
counts of possession with intent to supply Class A drugs and was jailed for
seven years at Croydon Crown Court. Attah was arrested after officers out on
patrol observed a vehicle acting suspiciously in the car park of Waitrose. As
officers approached the vehicle Attah leapt out and ran off, but was detained
after a footchase. A bag containing rocks of crack cocaine and £2,200 cash was
found in his vehicle, with another £1,000 cash found when he was searched.
Further wraps of drugs were found along the route Attah tried to escape.

Attah has convictions for 13 previous drug offences

A 47 year old man from Lambeth has been jailed after stealing a purse from a 69
year old lady in West Wickham Library.

Christopher Flynn, age 47, of Stockwell Road, Lambeth pled guilty to theft at
Bromley Magistrates Court and was jailed for 26 weeks.

On 23rd November 2012 a 69 year old lady reported the theft of her purse from
her handbag whilst at West Wickham Library whilst she had been using a
computer. When police examined CCTV at the venue, it showed a male crawling
under the desk and removing the purse from the handbag, which was on the
floor beside the victim.

Officers from the West Wickham Safer Neighbourhood Team identified Flynn
and he was arrested on 25th January.

A 44 year old Luton man has been sentenced after his DNA was found at the
scene of a burglary in Bromley.

Shaun Conway, age 44, of Red Rails, Luton pled guilty to burglary and was
sentenced to two years imprisonment, suspended for two years, at Croydon
Crown Court after being linked to a burglary at a property in Sundridge Avenue,
Bromley when traces of his blood were found at the scene.

Page 74



555

Bromley

Borough Commander’s

Newsletter
March 2013

55555555555555555555555555555555555555555555 555555555555555555555555555555555555555555555555555555 55555555555555555555555555555 55555555555555

TOTAL POLICING

Jewellery thieves jailed for four years

Jimmy Tippett Mark Spinks

Watch thief jailed

Two thieves from Beckenham have been jailed for in excess of four years after a £250,000 jewellery theft.

Jimmy Tippett, age 41, of Chancery Lane, Beckenham was jailed for 27 months and Mark Spinks, age 52,
of Calverley Close, Beckenham was jailed for 22 months at Croydon Crown Court after both pleading guilty
to theft.

On 29 August 2012 a jewellery seller attended a pre-arranged meeting with Tippett and Spinks, who stated
that they worked for a Saudi businessman, at the Bromley Court Hotel. After spending approximately half
an hour talking about the transaction Tippett picked up approximately £250,000 of diamond jewellery and
fled the venue. Spinks attempted to flee the scene in a taxi but was stopped 100 metres down the road.

Tippett was arrested a couple of weeks later at the Travel lodge in Ramsgate, after a media appeal for
information on his whereabouts.

A 19 year old male from Lewisham has been jailed for stealing a watch from a
youth in Bromley Town Centre.

Dominic Massicotte, 19, of Mayow Road, Sydenham pled guilty to theft and was
sentenced to 8 months in a Young Offender Institution at Croydon Crown Court. A
charge of robbery was ordered to remain on file by the Court. Massicotte had
approached a 17 year old youth in Bromley Town Centre in October 2012 and
threatened him, demanding his watch. After Massicotte left the scene the victim
called police and then identified Massicotte as the person who had stolen his
watch when police conducted a drive around of the area.

Page 75



66 6

Bromley

Borough Commander’s

Newsletter
March 2013

6666666666666666666 666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666 66666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666666 6666666666666666666666666666666666666666666 666666666666666

TOTAL POLICING

MPS joins national scheme to combat fraud

The Metropolitan Police Service has become the latest force to join a national government scheme designed to
improve the way fraud is investigated.

Action Fraud is the one-stop national reporting centre for fraud, holding primary responsibility for the co-
ordination of the vast majority of fraud and internet crime by dealing with the reporting, collation and, where
possible, investigation referrals. To date it has already helped more than 300,000 people deal with the
consequences of fraud and internet crime. They have also taken over 126,000 crime reports since December
2009.

When reporting a fraud to Action Fraud, a national crime reference number will be generated and the case will
be referred to the National Fraud Intelligence Bureau (NFIB) where it is analysed along with a wealth of
additional information from government departments, financial institutions and other large organisations. The
NFIB is run by City of London Police - the lead force for fraud in the UK.

Having this central collection point for crime reports will enable a much clearer national picture on the main
issues and allow seemingly unrelated incidents from around the country to be linked through analysis, which will
assist in identifying networks of criminals. Once information has been assessed, the NFIB will then send to
police forces or other agencies packages for investigation only where there is actionable intelligence or viable
lines of inquiry available for the force to pursue.

Every allegation reported to Action Fraud will be recorded and the victim given a reference number. Whilst it will
not be possible to investigate every report that comes in, each one will assist the NFIB in building up a clear
intelligence picture about fraud and fraudsters. This in turn will enable them to help to prevent other people
falling victim to fraud and public and private sector bodies to better protect themselves against the threat posed
by fraud.

Operation Sterling - the Met's unit that works in partnership with communities and businesses to identify new
crime trends, solutions, and share good practice with the main aim of disrupting and preventing economic crime
- will continue to inform and alert the public through their fraud alert website and raise awareness around fraud
in general to prevent people from becoming victims in the first place.

Action Fraud provides the public with just one point of reference, making the process much quicker and more
convenient for victims than visiting their local police station. This system enables the National Fraud Intelligence
Bureau to enhance the fraud picture by providing a national overview of the latest trends; with the analysis of
data also enabling the best quality ‘packages’ to be passed back to the Met for further investigation.

The most convenient way to report to Action Fraud is online. Online reporting of fraud and internet crime is
available 24 hours a day, seven days a week through http://www.actionfraud.police.uk. Telephone reporting is
also available on 0300 123 2040 - opening hours apply. If a crime is established, victims will be provided with a
crime reference number. If an immediate police response is required, ie. where the suspect is very near and /
or the victim is at risk, the public should continue to dial 999.

Page 76



777

Bromley

Borough Commander’s

Newsletter
March 2013

777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777 7777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777 77777777777777777777777777777777 7777777777777777

TOTAL POLICING

24 vehicles seized in latest Op Cubo day in Bromley

Twenty four vehicles were seized and four arrests made across Bromley during the latest day of action in the
continued crackdown on uninsured drivers.

Using ANPR technology at the stop sites in Anerley Hill, Elmers End, Penge High Street, Cray Avenue,
Shortlands and Plaistow Lane, the team netted twenty-four uninsured vehicles, as well as four arrests. The
arrests were for drug offences and serious fraud.

We will be continuing to run these operations across Bromley to make our streets in safer. With every car
seized, we are stopping criminals from using the roads. We want to stop uninsured drivers from causing harm
to law abiding people and pushing up insurance prices for everyone. Uninsured drivers are a danger to all road
users and we will use every power available to us to stop these people making Bromley's roads dangerous.

Prolific burglar jailed

A prolific burglar who targeted homes across Croydon, Bromley and Sutton has been jailed for three years
following a pro-active operation by the MPS's London Crime Squad.

Kenny Ward, 42, of Frimley Close, Croydon was jailed at Croydon Crown Court after previously pleading guilty
to two counts of residential burglary. Ward admitted a further 92 burglary offences dating back to 2005, which
were taken into consideration.

Ward, who has 20 previous convictions for burglary and multiple convictions for theft, forced entry into premises
to steal high value electrical goods such as iPads and Apple Mac computers along with jewellery, including
items of particular sentimental value such as wedding rings.

Ward would then sell his goods on for cash to fund his drug habit.

Page 77



88 8

Bromley

Borough Commander’s

Newsletter
March 2013

8888888888888888888 8888888888888888888888888888888888888888888888888888888888 88888888888888888888888888888888888888888888888888888888888888888888888888888888 88888888888888888888888888888888888888888888 88888888888888

TOTAL POLICING

£1,000,000 drug seizure in Beckenham

An arrest for armed robbery has led to a £1,000,000 drug seizure in Beckenham.

Officers from the MPS Flying Squad and Bromley Police, investigating an armed robbery at Paddy Power
Bookmakers in Beckenham, arrested a 25 year old male on suspicion of armed robbery. After his arrest two
addresses in Beckenham were searched - one in Hayes Way, one in Kelsey Lane - and a substantial quantity
of Class A and Class B drugs were recovered, with a street value of approximately £1 million. The 25 year old
has been charged with robbery and possession with intent to supply Class A & Class B drugs.

Page 78



999

Bromley

Borough Commander’s

Newsletter
March 2013

999999999999999999999999999999 9999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999 99999999999999999999999999999999 9999999999999999

TOTAL POLICING

Help us to help you from becoming a victim of burglary………….

Having your home burgled can be a traumatic experience, and therefore we are determined to reduce the
chances of it happening in the first place by raising peoples’ awareness of security. 36 per cent of burglaries
result from insecure properties – please don’t let your home become a target. Help us to protect your home by
taking simple steps such as using timers to turn lights and radios on, fitting alarms, making sure homes are
properly locked and by keeping valuables and presents out of view.

Please be vigilant and use these simple steps to secure your home and keep criminals out.

Our ten top burglary crime prevention tips for residents:

1. Mark or etch your property with your postcode, house or flat number or the first three letters of your house
name.

2. Register items with a serial number at www.immobilise.com

3. Do not leave your car keys, valuables or ID documents near a door, letterbox or window.

4. Always check who's at the door and don't open it if you feel anxious.

5. Close and lock all your doors and windows, even if you are only going out for a few minutes.

6. Keep your valuables out of sight

7. Leave some lights on if it will be dark before you get home

8. Fit a mortice lock to your front door and other external doors. Consider installing a burglar alarm.

9. Always keep sheds and outbuildings locked

10. Cancel milk or other deliveries if you will be away for days or weeks at a time.

Page 79



1010 10

Bromley

Borough Commander’s

Newsletter
March 2013

10101010101010101010101010101010101010101010101010101010101010101010 10101010101010101010101010101010101010101010101010101010101010101010101010101010101010101010101010101010101010101010101010101010101010101010101010101010101010 101010101010101010101010101010101010101010101010101010101010101010101010101010101010101010101010101010101010101010101010101010101010101010101010101010101010101010101010101010101010101010101010101010 101010101010101010101010101010101010101010101010101010101010101010101010101010101010101010101010101010101010101010 1010101010101010101010101010101010

TOTAL POLICING

Contact numbers for Bromley Police’s Safer Neighbourhood Teams

Bickley 07920 233 852
Biggin Hill 07880 783 736
Bromley Common & Keston 07920 233 855
Bromley Town 07887 826 502
Chelsfield & Pratts Bottom 07920 233 857
Chislehurst 07920 233 850
Clock House 07920 233 847
Copers Cope 07766 804 406
Cray Valley East 07880 788 942
Cray Valley West 07920 233 851
Crystal Palace 07920 233 858
Darwin 07920 233 859
Farnborough & Crofton 07920 233 856
Hayes & Coney Hall 020 8649 3548
Kelsey & Eden Park 07920 233 846
Mottingham & Chislehurst Nth 07880 781 483
Orpington 07766 804 412
Penge & Cator 07843 065 880
Petts Wood & Knoll 07920 233 853
Plaistow & Sundridge 07920 233 849
Shortlands 07920 233 848
West Wickham 07920 233 854

Internet Address: www.met.police.uk/bromley

Non emergency contact number 101 In an emergency always dial 999

Bromley Community Engagement Forum 020 8658 7168

***Sign up now to regularly receive information from the Police***

Neighbourhood Link

Neighbourhood Link is a free service that enables you to regularly receive information from the police about

crime and safety in the areas you sign up to. It will also be used by the Metropolitan Police Service to keep
you informed in the event of a major incident impacting on London.

To register please visit www.neighbourhoodlink.met.police.uk.

Page 80


	Agenda
	2 MINUTES OF LAST MEETING / MATTERS ARISING
	5 PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT REPORT QUARTER SEP - DEC 2012
	6 RESIDENTIAL BURGLARY ANALYSIS APR - SEP 2012
	7 PERPETRATOR PROGRAMME: DOMESTIC ABUSE
	8 DOMESTIC VIOLENCE STATISTICAL UPDATE 2010 - 2012
	11a BOROUGH COMMANDER'S NEWSLETTER - MARCH 2013

